

# **Flat Panel**

| <u> </u> |  |
|----------|--|
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |
|          |  |

User manual

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

| SAFETY  | . 5 |
|---|-----|
| Safety Instructions                               | . 5 |
| Copyright   | . 6 |
| Disclaimer  | . 6 |
| Trademark Recognition                             | . 6 |
| FCC Statement                                     | . 6 |
| FCC Warning                                       | . 6 |
| Declaration of Conformity for EU Countries        | . 7 |
| WEEE  | . 7 |
| ENERGY STAR                                       | . 7 |
| Low Blue Light and Eye Health                     | . 7 |
| What is Low Blue Light Technology?                |     |
| Calculating Breaks                                |     |
| Looking at Distant Objects                        |     |
| How to Exercise Your Eyes?                        | . / |
| INTRODUCTION                                      | . 8 |
| Package Contents                                  | . 8 |
| Standard Accessories                              | . 8 |
| Optional Accessories                              |     |
| Product Overview                                  |     |
| Front View  |     |
| Rear View   |     |
| Remote Control                                    | 13  |
| SETUP AND INSTALLATION                            | 15  |
| Wall Mounting                                     | 15  |
| Wall Mount Specifications                         |     |
| Stand Mounting (Optional)                         |     |
| Using the Remote Control                          |     |
| Installing/Replacing the Remote Control Batteries |     |
| Remote Control Operating Range                    | 23  |
| Connections                                       |     |
| Connecting to Power                               |     |
| Connecting External Devices                       | 24  |

| USING THE DISPLAY  | 30 |
|--|----|
| Powering On/Off  | 30 |
| Setup Wizard   |    |
|  |    |
| BASIC OPERATIONS   | 33 |
| Home Screen Overview                                     | 33 |
| Viewing Recent Tasks                                     | 34 |
| OSD Menu   | 35 |
| Shortcut Menu  |    |
| Configuring Image Settings                               |    |
| Configuring Display Settings                             |    |
| Configuring Audio Settings<br>Viewing Device Information |    |
| Android Settings Menu                                    |    |
| Personalizing the System                                 |    |
| Configuring Network Settings                             |    |
| Configuring Device Settings                              |    |
| Configuring Security Settings                            |    |
| Configuring System Settings                              | 58 |
| USING THE APPS   | 63 |
| Creative Cast  | 64 |
| Supported Operating Systems for Casting                  |    |
| Proprietary Sharing                                      | 64 |
| Mobile Device  |    |
| Computer<br>Creative Cast Settings                       |    |
| Creative Board   |    |
| File Manager   |    |
| Managing Files   |    |
| Cloud Storage  |    |
| Playing Multimedia Files                                 | 83 |
| Screen Lock  | 87 |
| Browser  | 87 |
| Optoma Marketplace                                       | 88 |
| Keeper   |    |
| MediaPlayer  |    |
| Creating a Playlist                                      |    |
| Managing a PlaylistQuick Access                          |    |
| WPS Office   |    |
| Optoma Management Suite (OMS)                            |    |
|  | 50 |

| ADDITIONAL INFORMATION        |     |
|-------------------------------|-----|
| Dimensions                    |     |
| 55-inch                       |     |
| 65-inch                       |     |
| 75-inch                       |     |
| 86-inch                       |     |
| 98-inch                       |     |
| Supported Timing List         |     |
| RS232 Protocol Function List  |     |
| RS232 Pin Assignments         |     |
| RS232 RJ45 Control Connection |     |
| SET Command                   |     |
| GET Command                   | 113 |
| LED Indicator                 | 115 |
| Port Information              | 115 |
| Troubleshooting               |     |
| Maintenance                   |     |
| Cleaning the Screen           |     |
| Clean the Front Frame         |     |
| Optoma Global Offices         |     |

# SAFETY

Please follow all warnings, precautions and maintenance as recommended in this user manual.

### **Safety Instructions**

- Only use attachments/accessories specified by the manufacturer.
- Do not block any ventilation openings. To ensure reliable operation of the device and to protect from overheating, it is recommended to install the device in a location that does not block ventilation. Do not put the device in an enclosure such as a book case or a cabinet that restricts air flow.
- Do not use the device near water or moisture. To reduce the risk of fire and/or electric shock, do not expose the device to rain or moisture.
- Do not install near heat sources such as radiators, heaters, stoves or any other apparatus, such as amplifiers, that emits heat.
- Do not let objects or liquids enter the device. They may touch dangerous voltage ports or short out parts that could result in fire or electric shock.
- Do not place the device on an unstable surface. The device may fall over, resulting in injury or damage to the device.
- Do not setup the device in places where it might be subject to vibration or shock.
- Do not use any hard or sharp object to touch the screen.
- Do not use the device if it has been physically damaged or abused. Physical damage/abuse would be (but not limited to):
  - The device has been dropped.
  - Power supply cord or plug has been damaged.
  - Liquid has been spilled on to the device.
  - The device has been exposed to rain or moisture.
  - Something has fallen in the device or something is loose inside.
- Do not attempt to service the device yourself. Opening or removing covers may expose you to dangerous voltages or other hazards. Please call Optoma before you send the device for repair.
- Disconnect the power plug from AC outlet if the device is not being used for a long period of time.
- Remove the batteries from the remote control before storage. If the batteries are left in the remote for long periods, they may leak.
- Turn off and unplug the power plug from the AC outlet before cleaning the device.
- Use a soft dry cloth with mild detergent to clean the display housing. Do not use abrasive cleaners, waxes or solvents to clean the device.
- See the device enclosure for safety related markings.
- The device should only be repaired by appropriate service personnel.

## Copyright

This publication, including all photographs, illustrations and software, is protected under international copyright laws, with all rights reserved. Neither this manual, nor any of the material contained herein, may be reproduced without written consent of the author.

© Copyright 2023

### Disclaimer

The information in this document is subject to change without notice. The manufacturer makes no representations or warranties with respect to the contents hereof and specifically disclaims any implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose. The manufacturer reserves the right to revise this publication and to make changes from time to time in the content hereof without obligation of the manufacturer to notify any person of such revision or changes.

### **Trademark Recognition**

Kensington is a U.S. registered trademark of ACCO Brand Corporation with issued registrations and pending applications in other countries throughout the world.

HDMI, the HDMI Logo, and High-Definition Multimedia Interface are trademarks or registered trademarks of HDMI Licensing LLC in the United States and other countries.

Google, the Google logo, and Google Drive are trademarks or registered trademarks of Google LLC.

OneDrive is a trademark and brand of Microsoft Corporation.

All other product names used in this manual are the properties of their respective owners and are Acknowledged.

### **FCC Statement**

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to part 15 of the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation.

This equipment generates, uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.
- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected.
- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

### **FCC Warning**

This device complies with Part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions:

(1) this device may not cause harmful interference, and

(2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

#### Notice: Canadian users

This Class B digital apparatus complies with Canadian CAN ICES-3 (B)/NMB-003 (B).

Remarque à l'intention des utilisateurs canadiens

Cet appareil numerique de la classe B est conforme a la norme NMB-003 du Canada.

### **Declaration of Conformity for EU Countries**

- EMC Directive 2014/30/EU (Including amendments)
- Low Voltage Directive 2014/35/EU

### WEEE



#### Disposal instructions

Do not throw this electronic device into the trash when discarding. To minimize pollution and ensure utmost protection of the global environment, please recycle it.

### **ENERGY STAR**



**ENERGY STAR** is a U.S. Environmental Protection Agency voluntary program that helps businesses and individuals save money and protect our climate through superior energy efficiency. Products that earn the ENERGY STAR prevent greenhouse gas emissions by meeting strict energy efficiency criteria or requirements set by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The following logo appears on all ENERGY STAR-certified models:

This product qualifies for ENERGY STAR in the "Standard mode" setting and this is the setting in which power savings will be achieved. Changing the Standard mode picture settings or enabling other features will increase power consumption that could exceed the limits necessary to qualify for ENERGY STAR rating. Refer to EnergyStar.gov for more information on Energy Star program.

### Low Blue Light and Eye Health

### What is Low Blue Light Technology?

**Low Blue Light Technology** reduces the blue-light component emitted by your product. The harm of blue light to human eyes is mainly manifested in the pathological harm of eyes and the harm of human body rhythm, which lead to myopia, cataract and macular disease.

Low blue light certification: it is a certification project to evaluate whether the display equipment meets the requirements of photobiosafety and UV free radiation safety.

Note: To meet TUV Rheinland of low blue light certificate, the display setting should be:

- Display Mode is Presentation
- Color Temperature is Standard
- Low Blue Light is 100.

#### **Calculating Breaks**

It is recommended to take a 10-minute break every hour of continuous screen use.

Note: Remember to blink your eyes often to keep them healthy and avoid dryiness.

#### Looking at Distant Objects

During the break look at distant objects or close your eyes. This helps to relax your ciliary (focusing) muscle and avoids eye strain.

#### How to Exercise Your Eyes?

- 1. Hold your pointer finger a few inches away from your eye.
- 2. Focus on your finger.
- 3. Slowly move your finger away from your face, holding your focus.
- 4. Look away for a moment, into the distance.
- 5. Focus on your outstretched finger and slowly bring it back toward your eye.

## **Package Contents**

Carefully unpack and verify that you have the items listed below under standard accessories. Some of the items under optional accessories may not be available depending on the model, specification and your region of purchase. Please check with your place of purchase. Some accessories may vary from region to region. The warranty card is only supplied in some specific regions. Please consult your dealer for detailed information.

### **Standard Accessories**



Note: For warranty information, please visit www.optoma.com.

## **Optional Accessories**









### **Product Overview**

### **Front View**



| No. | Item          |  |
|-----|---------------|--|
| 1.  | LED indicator |  |
| 2.  | Power button  |  |
| 3.  | Menu button   |  |
| 4.  | Input button  |  |

| No. | Item   |  |
|-----|--|--|
| 5.  | Left (◀) button                                  |  |
| 6.  | Right (▶) button                                 |  |
| 7.  | Down ( $ildsymbol{ abla}$ ) / Volume Down button |  |
| 8.  | Up (▲) / Volume Up button                        |  |

Note: When the OSD menu pops up, the Input button can be used as a selection key.

### **Rear View**

#### 55-inch panel



65-inch/75-inch/86-inch/98-inch panel



| No. | Item              |  |  |
|-----|-------------------|--|--|
| 1.  | Handles (x2)      |  |  |
| 2.  | OPS slot          |  |  |
| 3.  | USB 2.0 port      |  |  |
| 4.  | RS232 port        |  |  |
| 5.  | USB 3.0 port      |  |  |
| 6.  | USB Type-C port   |  |  |
| 7.  | HDMI ports        |  |  |
| 8.  | HDMI 2.0 out port |  |  |

| No. | Item                          |  |  |
|-----|-------------------------------|--|--|
| 9.  | Audio out jack                |  |  |
| 10. | SPDIF port                    |  |  |
| 11. | LAN port(s)                   |  |  |
| 12. | Power switch                  |  |  |
| 13. | AC Input 100-240V port        |  |  |
| 14. | Speakers (x2)                 |  |  |
| 15. | Network module slot           |  |  |
| 16. | Mounting holes for wall mount |  |  |

- The HDMI in ports support CEC.
- USB type-C port supports DisplayPort 1.2 and power delivery (65W).
- Android and HDMI 3 port do not support HDMI Output function.

### **Remote Control**



| No. | Button    | Description  |  |
|-----|-----------|--|--|
| 1.  | Power (🕘) | Turn on/off the flat panel.  |  |
| 2.  | Mute (🕸)  | Turn off the sound temporarily.  |  |
| 3.  | Start     | Perform the same function as the <i>Windows</i> key on a computer keyboard.  |  |
| 4.  | Space     | Perform the same function as the <b>Space</b> key on a computer keyboard.  |  |
| 5.  | Alt+Tab   | Perform the same function as the <i>Alt</i> and <i>Tab</i> keys on a computer keyboard.<br>Pressing both keys, you can switch between all open applications (windows). |  |

| No. | Button                      | Description  |  |
|-----|-----------------------------|--|--|
| 6.  | Alt+F4                      | Perform the same function as the <i>Alt</i> and <i>F4</i> keys on a computer keyboard. Pressing both keys, you can close the current window. |  |
| 7.  | Numeric keys                | Numeric input keys   |  |
| 8.  | Display                     | Show the current input source and information.   |  |
| 9.  | Repeat (⊄⊋)                 | View recent apps.  |  |
| 10. | Home                        | Return to the Home screen.   |  |
| 11. | Input                       | Select the input source.   |  |
| 12. | Menu                        | Display or hide the OSD menu.  |  |
| 13. | Red (●)                     | Lock or unlock the <b>Power</b> button (on the panel) function.  |  |
| 14. | Green (●)                   | Lock or unlock the <b>Power</b> button (on the panel) function.  |  |
| 15. | Yellow (O)                  | No function.   |  |
| 16. | Blue (●)                    | Freeze the screen.   |  |
| 17. | Blank (🔳)                   | Blank the screen.  |  |
| 18. | Backspace (⊠)               | Perform the same function as the <b>Backspace</b> key on a computer keyboard.  |  |
| 19. | Navigation keys<br>(▲▼◀►)   | Select an item or option.  |  |
| 20. | Enter                       | Confirm the selection.   |  |
| 21. | Creative Board<br>(🍂)       | Launch the <b>Creative Board</b> app.  |  |
| 22. | Back                        | Return to the previous screen.   |  |
| 23. | PgUp                        | Perform the same function as the <b>PgUp</b> key on a computer keyboard.   |  |
| 24. | Channel keys                | No function.   |  |
| 25. | Volume keys                 | Adjust the volume level.   |  |
| 26. | PgDn                        | Perform the same function as the <b>PgDn</b> key on a computer keyboard.   |  |
| 27. | Function keys<br>(F1 ~ F12) | Perform the same function as the <i>F1 ~ F12</i> function keys on a computer keyboard.   |  |

Note: If the PC module is not installed into the OPS slot, all computer-related keys will have no function

### Wall Mounting

Use only an Optoma-approved optional wall mount kit (available separately). Kit will include the following items:









With WIB6560A, there are two

packages for screw A. M6 screws for N3551K and M8 screws for N3651K. With WIB90800A, <u>only</u> one package



Dual mounting brackets and wall mount

Screw B (x8)

Screw C (x2)

Note:

•

Anchor (x8)

| Model Name | VESA Grid    | Screw Type & Length |
|------------|--------------|---------------------|
| 55-inch    | 400 x 200 mm | M6*12L              |
| 65-inch    | 600 x 400 mm | M8*25L              |
| 75-inch    | 800 x 400 mm | M8*25L              |
| 86-inch    | 800 x 600 mm | M8*25L              |
| 98-inch    | 800 x 600 mm | M8*25L              |

### Wall Mount Specifications



55-inch



65-inch







98-inch



86-inch

To mount the panel on the wall, complete the following steps:

1. Install the dual mounting brackets on the rear of the panel. Then secure the brackets with four screws (**A**).



2. Drill eight small holes on the mounting location and insert the anchors into the holes.



3. Position the wall mount on the wall, then secure the wall mount with eight screws (**B**) through the washers into the installed anchors on the wall.



4. Align and hook the dual mounting brackets to the wall mount.



5. Secure the dual mounting brackets and the wall mount with two screws (C).



- Maximum wall mount kit load capacity: 160kg (352lbs).
- The wall mount should be installed into a concrete wall to ensure a secure installation. If a concrete wall is not available, it is recommended that a stand installation be used instead. Please refer to page 19.
- Screws must be tightly secured; however, to avoid damage to the mounting brackets, wall mount, or panel, do not overtighten the screws.
- The installation should only be performed by qualified technicians. Improper installation may cause the panel to fall or malfunction.
- Please note that damage resulting from incorrect installation will void the warranty.

## **Stand Mounting (Optional)**

The stand mount kit includes the following items:



To mount the panel on the stand, complete the following steps:

1. Install the dual mounting brackets on the rear of the panel. Then secure the brackets with four screws (A).



- *Dual* mounting brackets, wall mount, and screws (A) are included in the wall mount kit. Refer to "Wall Mounting" on page 15.
- Portrait mode installation only supports 90 degrees clockwise (power LED facing down).

2. Flip the stand base so that you can see the screw holes for the wheel, then install the wheel onto its slot and secure it with four screws (J).

Repeat the same procedure to install the remaining three wheels.



Place the stand base on a stable surface, then install the stand pole onto its slot and secure both standoffs with two nuts (G) through the washers (G2 and G1).
 Repeat the same procedure to install the other stand pole.



- Align the pen tray with the screw holes on the middle part of the poles, then secure the pen tray with four screws (H).
- Install the wall mount on the upper part of the poles, then insert the screws (K) through the screw holes from the rear side of the poles.

#### \* Please Note:

- a) For safest use and to avoid risk of tipping, do not mount at highest point on ST01 stand.
- b) Do NOT stand underneath ST01 stand when adjusting mount height.
- Place the washers (K1) and the nuts (K2) into the screws, then tighten the nuts (K2) to secure the wall mount in place.



7. Align and hook the dual mounting brackets to the installed wall mount on the stand poles.

#### \* Please Note:

Do not operate or place the ST01 stand on a sloped surface as this can cause rolling and/or result in injury or harm to self and others.



### **Using the Remote Control**

### Installing/Replacing the Remote Control Batteries

Two (2x) AAA size batteries are supplied for the remote control. **IMPORTANT!** *Replace only with the same or equivalent type batteries.* 

1. Remove the cover of the battery compartment.



2. Insert the two batteries with correct polarity (+/-) as shown inside the battery compartment.



3. Replace the cover.



#### CAUTION

Improper use of batteries can result in chemical leakage or explosion. Be sure to follow the instructions below.

- Do not mix batteries of different types. Different types of batteries have different characteristics.
- Do not mix old and new batteries. Mixing old and new batteries can shorten the life of new batteries or cause chemical leakage in old batteries.
- Remove batteries as soon as they are depleted. Chemicals that leak from batteries that come in contact with skin can cause a rash. If you find any chemical leakage, wipe thoroughly with a cloth.
- The batteries supplied with this product may have a shorter life expectancy due to storage conditions.
- If you will not be using the remote control for an extended period of time, remove the batteries.
- When you dispose of the batteries, you must obey the law in the relative area or country.

### **Remote Control Operating Range**

When using the remote control, make sure to point it within  $\pm 30^{\circ}$  to the IR receiver on the panel. The distance between the remote control and the IR sensor window should not be longer than 8 meters.

- Make sure that there are no obstacles between the remote control and the IR sensor window on the panel that might obstruct the infra-red beam.
- Make sure the IR transmitter of the remote control is not being obstructed by direct sunlight or fluorescent lamps.
- If the remote control is near Inverter-Type fluorescent lamps, you may experience intermittent functionality.
- If the remote control and the display are too close together, the remote control might not function properly.



## Connections

### **Connecting to Power**

- 1. Connect one end of the power cord to the AC-in socket on the panel.
- 2. Connect the other end of the power cord to a power outlet or a power supply.
- 3. Set the **Power** switch to ON (I). The panel will automatically enter standby mode.



### **Connecting External Devices**

### HDMI input connection

• Connect your computer to the panel using an HDMI cable.



Note: 55-inch panel is only equipped with two HDMI ports.

• Connect your video source to the panel using an HDMI cable.

| HDMI 1 HDMI 2 HDMI OUT HDMI 3 |  |
|-------------------------------|--|
|                               |  |
|                               |  |
|                               |  |

Note: 55-inch panel is only equipped with two HDMI ports.

### **USB type-C connection**

Connect your computer to the panel using a USB type-C cable.

- USB type-C can be used to transmit audio and video signals.
- The USB type-C port also supports power delivery and will output 65W.



### Audio output connection

Connect your external speakers to the Audio out jack on the panel.



### **SPDIF** connection

Connect your audio equipment to the panel using a SPDIF cable.



#### **HDMI output connection**

Connect your projector to the HDMI out port on the panel.



### **USB** connection

Connect your USB peripheral device to the panel using a USB cable.

Note: For the USB flash drive connection, simply plug it into one of the available USB ports.



#### **RS232 connection**

Connect your computer to the panel using a RS232 cable.



#### Wired network connection

For wired network connection, connect your router to the panel using an Ethernet cable.

**Note:** If you want to connect to an external network, use the Internet port, or if you want to connect to a local area network, then use the LAN port.



- To configure network settings, refer to "Configuring Network Settings" on page 48.
- 55-inch panel is only equipped with one LAN port.

### Wi-Fi connection (optional)

For a Wi-Fi connection, you must first install a Wi-Fi dongle in the Wi-Fi slot. These devices can receive wireless signals in areas where Wi-Fi networks are available.

Note:

- For 55-inch panel, its Wi-Fi slot is located on the top of the display.
- For 65-inch/75-inch/86-inch/98-inch panel, its Wi-Fi slot is located on the bottom of the display.

To install the Wi-Fi dongle, complete the following steps:

- 1. Remove two (2) screws from the Wi-Fi slot bracket.
- 2. Remove the Wi-Fi slot bracket.



3. Insert the Wi-Fi dongle in the Wi-Fi slot on the panel.



Note: To configure Wi-Fi settings, refer to "Configuring Network Settings" on page 48.

## **USING THE DISPLAY**

### **Powering On/Off**

### **Powering on**

Note: After the power cord is properly connected, make sure the **Power** switch is set to ON (I).



Press the **Power** button to turn the panel on. The LED indicator light turns blue, indicating it is ready to use.

Note: You can also press the 🕑 button on the remote control to turn on the panel.





### **Powering off**

Press the **Power** button for 3 seconds to turn off the panel. Press **OK** at the prompt to turn it off immediately or wait for 10 seconds until the panel turns off automatically.

| bever (              | 2003                             |
|----------------------|----------------------------------|
| Notice C<br>Notice C | ran daller Trayler's Didday. I d |
|                      |                                  |

When the LED indicator light turns red, this indicates that the panel has entered standby mode.

- You can also press the 🕑 button on the remote control to turn off the panel.
- The panel still consumes power when it is in standby mode. It is highly recommended to unplug the power cord from the power outlet if the panel will not be used for an extended period of time.

# **USING THE DISPLAY**

### **Setup Wizard**

The Setup Wizard will appear on the screen when you turn on your panel for the first time.

1. Select the language for the on-screen display (OSD) menu. Select *Next* to continue.

|                      | 0 | 64%            |  |
|----------------------|---|----------------|--|
|                      | 0 |                |  |
|                      | 0 | Britan         |  |
|                      |   | 3555           |  |
| Choose your language | 0 | 10040          |  |
|                      | 0 | <b>1977</b> 23 |  |
|                      | 0 |                |  |
|                      | 0 | 370            |  |
|                      |   |                |  |
|                      |   |                |  |

2. If you want to connect your panel to the Internet wirelessly, select one of the available networks and select **Connect**. Otherwise, select **Skip**.

#### **IMPORTANT!**

- To connect to a wireless network, make sure the Wi-Fi dongle is properly plugged into the Wi-Fi dongle slot. Refer to page 29.
- If you are connecting to a secure network, you will need to enter the password when connecting for the first time only.

|                        | 0         | O bese  |
|------------------------|-----------|---------|
|                        | 🧟 miliana | 0       |
|                        | ¥ ====    | ġ.      |
|                        | Ŷ. nime   | -       |
|                        | ¥         |         |
| Choose a WI-FI network | 9 Marine  | <u></u> |
|                        | 7         | ۵.      |
|                        | T         | •       |
|                        |           |         |
|                        |           |         |

## **USING THE DISPLAY**

3. Configure the date and time related settings. Select *Next* to continue.



4. Read Optoma's legal policies, including Terms and conditions of use, Privacy policy, Cookie policy, and Open source. Check the *I agree to Terms and conditions, Privacy policy, Cookies policy and Open source* radio key and then select *Next* to complete the setup. The panel is now ready to use.

|   | Out policy                    |                   |  |
|---|-------------------------------|-------------------|--|
|   | Sector and accounting of use  |                   |  |
| Optoma policy                                 | Print and                     |                   |  |
| Phone real for legal (relice before per clart |                               |                   |  |
|   | (ferrer)                      |                   |  |
|   | O 147751777800-04055 Processo | elemente estimate |  |

### Home Screen Overview

Home screen is displayed every time you start the panel.



To navigate the Home screen, press the  $\blacktriangle$ ,  $\blacktriangledown$ ,  $\triangleleft$ , or  $\triangleright$  button to select an option and press the **Enter** button to confirm.

- Unless otherwise specified, this section describes panel operations using the remote control.
- You can also use the control panel or mouse to operate the panel.

### Viewing Recent Tasks

Select i to view and manage all opened apps.



- To open the app, select the app and press the **Enter** button.
- To close the app, select **X** and press the **Enter** button.
- To clear the list, select *Clean All The Processes* 😴 and press the Enter button.

### **OSD Menu**

To open the OSD menu and configure the settings, you can either use the remote control or the control panel.

| Main menu                          | Submenu      | Settings   |
|------------------------------------|--------------|------------|
|                                    |              |            |
| 🔆 Shorttur                         | < Audio/     |            |
| 蓋 Shortcur<br>図 Image<br>日 Display | Sound Effect | Standard + |
| CB Diply                           | Mute         | 30         |
| Audio                              | Volume       | • •        |
| Information                        | - Hanna      |            |
| Information                        | Toms         | •          |
|                                    | Balance      | 0.         |
|                                    |              |            |
|                                    |              |            |

| Operation/Action          | Using the Remote Control                                 | Using the Control Panel                      |
|---------------------------|--|--|
| Open the OSD menu         | Press the <b>Menu</b> or <b>Input</b> button             | Press the MENU or INPUT button               |
| Select an item            | Press the ▲ or ▼ button                                  | Press the ▲ or ▼ button                      |
| Enter the submenu         | Press the ► button                                       | Press the ▶ button                           |
| Adjust the setting        | Press the ◀ or ▶ button                                  | Press the ◀ or ▶ button                      |
| Confirm the selection     | Press the Enter button                                   | Press the INPUT button                       |
| Move to the previous item | Press the <b>Back</b> , <b>◀</b> , or <b>Menu</b> button | Press the <ul> <li>or MENU button</li> </ul> |
| Close the OSD menu        | Toggle the <b>Menu</b> button                            | Toggle the <b>MENU</b> button                |

**Note:** The selected menu item is highlighted with an **orange** rectangle.

#### **Shortcut Menu**

Shortcut 🛬 menu is the first OSD menu. Complete the following steps:

| 🚓 stanat   | 0                |         |           |        |
|------------|------------------|---------|-----------|--------|
| 🖂 imp      |                  |         |           | 1.000  |
| - B theshy | -antor           | H 14 1  | HEND      | ereto: |
| Ka sanio   | -                |         |           |        |
| 💮 Маталан  | 1 <u>2.48</u> .9 |         |           |        |
|            | _ PPm            | at 1 ti | been need |        |
|            | ¢ –              | -       | ю –       | •      |
|            |                  |         | 22 B3     | W.F.M  |

• Select the input source. Those input sources that are available are marked with the DOT • symbol.



- For more information on making connections to external devices, refer to the "Connections" section.
- The OPS option is only available if the PC module is properly installed into the OPS slot of the panel.
- Select *PIP mode* to display two sources on the screen simultaneously. Note:
  - Before selecting the PIP mode, make sure the other source is already connected to the panel.
  - The PIP mode can only be used with Android source.



Select any of the following:

- **Sources** to select the second source that you want to display on the screen.
- Size 🗐 to select the second source window size. The available options: Large, Medium, or Small.
- Sound 🔅 to adjust the second source sound.
- *Position* : to adjust the second window position. The available options: Top-left, Bottom-left, Top-right, Bottom-right, or Center.
- *Enter* 🕣 to close the PIP mode and switch to the second source.
- X to close the PIP mode and display the primary source only.

• Select **Screen record** to record video from the panel's screen and connected camera screen (if enabled) and hold live stream on multiple platforms.

#### Note:

- You can drag the recording utility to your preferred location on the screen.
- The screen recording utility can only be used with Android source.



Select any of the following:

- *Record* to start recording the screen. The recording starts 3 seconds after you select . While recording, select **|** to pause recording or **|** to stop recording. Then select **Save** to save the recording.
- *Live* to start live streaming. First you need to configure the streaming settings: select the streaming platform among YouTube, Facebook, and Twitch, enter the streaming server URL and streaming key to the Server URL and Stream Key fields respectively. Then enable or disable recording the live stream. Select *Go Live* to start the live stream.

| Live stream setup                           |          |
|---|----------|
| Potter                                      | Votes: + |
| Same-UR.<br>Hinduna rimpigaanaka stansi 425 |          |
| filmen Cy                                   |          |
| 📕 yoona ing ika sawan                       |          |
| (Castar )                                   | N.M.     |

Settings to configure recording settings: enable or disable connected camera recording, enable/disable
microphone function, select the preferred video resolution, and select the path where you want the recordings
to be saved. Then select Confirm to save the settings.

Note: By default, all recordings are saved to the Storage/Record folder.

| Camere woord ty     |              |
|---------------------|--------------|
| Montester           | -            |
| Montese             |              |
| Video (temoluti mi) | = 3001x000 = |
| saugoth.            |              |
| /StringerResord     | 12           |
| Cares -             |              |

- **EXIT** to close the recording tool.

• Select the backlight slider bar and press the ◄ or ► button to adjust the backlight level.



**Note:** For a comfortable viewing experience, you can enable Flicker Free function.

• Select the low blue light slider bar and press the ◀ or ▶ button to adjust the low blue light level.

**IMPORTANT!** Studies have shown that just as ultra-violet rays can cause eye damage, the shortwave-length blue light rays from displays can cause eyestrain, retina damage, and affect vision over time. Optoma Low Blue Light is an eye protection feature that can reduce the blue light.

|--|

**IMPORTANT!** For protecting your eyes against prolonged display use, we highly recommend you do the following:

- Let your eyes rest for 10 minutes after 2 hours of continuous use.
- Roll your eyes upward towards your eyebrows, and then roll your eyes in a large circle every few hours.
- For every 20 minutes of display viewing, look into the distance for 20 seconds.
- When your eyes get sore, close your eyes for a minute.
- Select the volume slider bar and press the ◀ or ▶ button to adjust the volume level.



### **Configuring Image Settings**

In the OSD menu, select **F** to open the Image menu, then complete the following steps:

| E Standa  | < briege/    |                 |
|-----------|--------------|-----------------|
| 2 may     | Electro Mede | Presenter 🔛 🖷 👻 |
| The same  | #120000      |                 |
| K S. Ando | 64).004      |                 |
| 🔿 wanata  | 55W          |                 |
|           | Ownerse      | 1001000 -       |
|           | H-++1        | >               |

- Select *Display Mode* and select one of the available options: Presentation, Bright, Cinema, HDR, or User.
   Note:
  - Image settings can only be adjusted in HDMI, OPS, and Type-C input. It can't be adjusted and will be grayed-out in Android source.
  - If the Display Mode setting is set to User, you can customize image settings by adjusting the brightness, contrast, and color settings based on your preferences.
- Select the *Brightness* slider bar and press the ◀ or ► button to adjust the screen brightness level.
- Select the *Contrast* slider bar and press the ◀ or ► button to adjust the screen contrast level.
- Select the *Color* slider bar and press the ◀ or ▶ button to adjust the screen color level from black and white to fully saturated color.

**Note:** Brightness level, contrast level, and color level can be adjusted only if the Display Mode is set to **User**. In other display modes these parameters are preset and cannot be adjusted.

- Select Color Temperature and select one of the available options: Standard, Warm, or Cold.
- Select Reset to reset all image settings to their defaults.

| 46.60 | 17.976 | (Alti) | (FAD) | ) i de la | 12 |  |
|-------|--------|--------|-------|-----------|----|--|
|       | 15     | ĉarcal |       | Facel     | B  |  |
|       | 35     |        |       |           |    |  |

### **Configuring Display Settings**

In the OSD menu, select is to open the Display menu, then complete the following steps:



- Select Aspect Ratio and select one of the available options: 16:9, 4:3, or PTP (Pixel To Pixel).
   Note: For 4K input, the aspect ratio will be locked to PTP. For non-4K input, PTP will be grayed out and user can select only 4:3 or 16:9 as aspect ratio.
- Select *Pixel Shift (min)* and select one of the available options: Off, 2, 3, 5, 30, or 60.
   Note:
  - Pixel shift feature helps to prevent image retention.
  - Pixel shift is supported with all input sources except for Android.
- Select the *Backlight* slider bar and press the ◀ or ► button to adjust the backlight level.
   Note: Backlight can be adjusted also in the Shortcut menu. Refer to page 36.
- Select the *Low Blue Light* slider bar and press the ◀ or ► button to adjust the blue light level. Note: Low Blue Light can be adjusted also in the Shortcut menu. Refer to page 36.
- Select *Dynamic Black* and select one of the available options: Off or Based on Content (not supported in Android).
  - **Note:** Dynamic black feature gives more depth to your image so that bright scenes appear crisp and clear, while dark scenes remain detailed with deep blacks and exceptional light and shade detail.

### **Configuring Audio Settings**

In the OSD menu, select content in the Audio menu, then complete the following steps:

| (25) house            | Print Titler) | <u>Avecant</u> + |
|-----------------------|---------------|------------------|
| Date:                 | 900           | 3                |
| сја ливо              | schart.       | • • •            |
| <li>(j) Internet</li> | See:          | · · · ·          |
|                       | 244           | + N              |
|                       | address.      | <b>—</b> • •     |

- Select Sound Effect and select one of the available options: Standard, Meeting, Class, Movie, or User.
   Note: If the sound effect setting is set to User, you can customize audio settings by adjusting the bass and treble level according to your preference.
- Select *Mute* to mute or unmute audio.
   Note: You can also mute or unmute audio by pressing the button on the remote control.
- Select the *Volume* slider bar and press the ◀ or ► button to adjust the volume level.
- Select the *Bass* slider bar and press the ◀ or ► button to adjust the bass level that is suitable for your room.
   Note: Bass level and treble level can be adjusted only if the Sound Effect is set to User. In other sound effect modes this parameter is preset and cannot be adjusted.
- Select the *Treble* slider bar and press the ◀ or ► button to adjust the treble level that is suitable for your room.
- Select the *Balance* slider bar and press the ◀ or ► button to adjust the sound balance level that is suitable for your room.

### **Viewing Device Information**

In the OSD menu, select (i) to open the Information menu, then complete the following steps:

| < Internation/ |          |
|----------------|----------|
| f: x : x -     |          |
| 2007           | ×        |
|                |          |
|                |          |
|                |          |
|                |          |
|                |          |
|                | f.z.: 2+ |

- Select *Display* to view display mode, current input source, resolution, color depth, and color format.
- Select *About* to view regulatory model name, serial number, firmware version, and Android version.

### **Android Settings Menu**

To open the Settings menu, select on the Home screen and press the **Enter** button on the remote control. **Note:** Settings can be modified only in Android mode.

| Main menu  | Submenu                      | Settings           |
|------------|------------------------------|--------------------|
| 🗸 procedar | P. Arrestad                  |                    |
| 🖶 ikiya    | Mr q. va                     |                    |
| C 660      | a se p                       | (9 <sup>-</sup>    |
| 🛇 Sicutiy  | 3-1.4 as to 1                |                    |
| 18 dese    | Device Chercul on (Konos del | Lanc (xiles (P)) 👻 |
|            | A COMPANY                    | - 6                |
|            |                              |                    |
|            |                              |                    |

To configure the setting, you can either use the remote control or the control panel.

| Operation/Action          | Using the Remote Control                                  | Using the Control Panel                                   |
|---------------------------|---|---|
| Select an item            | Press the $\blacktriangle$ or $\blacktriangledown$ button | Press the $\blacktriangle$ or $\blacktriangledown$ button |
| Enter the submenu         | Press the > button  | Press the ► button  |
| Adjust the setting        | Press the ◀ or ► button                                   | Press the ◀ or ▶ button                                   |
| Confirm the selection     | Press the Enter button                                    | Press the INPUT button                                    |
| Move to the previous item | Press the <b>Back</b> or ◀ button                         | Press the ◀ button  |
| Close the Settings menu   | Toggle the <b>Back</b> button                             | N/A   |

Note: The selected menu item is highlighted with an orange rectangle.

#### Personalizing the System

In the Settings menu, select 🕐 to open the Personalized menu, then complete the following steps:

| Q             | 1. meanitant/ |   |
|---------------|---------------|---|
| · · · · · · · | TYPE:         | 2 |
| The Deside    |               |   |

• Select Wallpaper and select a pre-loaded image as a wallpaper or an image from your gallery.



If you select a pre-loaded wallpaper from the Pictures folder, the setting will take effect immediately.

If you prefer to use a customized wallpaper, follow these steps:

- a) In the Custom folder, select +.
- b) Select your preferred image from the local or external storage and select *OK*. You can import up to 10 images.
- c) In the Custom folder, select on the image you wish to use as a wallpaper. The setting takes effect immediately.

**Note:** To delete images in the Custom folder, select *J*. Then select the image and select **Delete**.



- Change pictures: Select the slideshow interval from 5mins to 1 day. By default the slideshow is off.
 Note: You can also set a wallpaper directly from the File Manager gallery. For more information on the File Manager, refer to page 78.

- Image: Second Second

  Image: Second Second

  Image: Second Second

  Image: Second S
- Select **Boot logo** to select the logo or image that will be shown when the device is turned on.

- **Note:** If you want to use a customized logo/image, select the preferred logo/image in the Custom folder. If the Custom folder is empty, select + to add the logo/image.
- Select **Boot Animation** to select the animated logo style to be shown when the device is turned on.



**Note:** If you want to use a customized animated logo style, select the style in the Custom folder. If the Custom folder is empty, select + to add the animation style.

•

• Select Device Orientation(Clockwise) to rotate the screen to match the flat panel orientation.



Adjust the setting to Portrait to rotate the screen 90 degrees (clockwise).



Landscape

Portrait

• Select *Input Name* to rename the input. Select the input name you wish to change, then type a new name and confirm name modification by selecting **OK** at the prompt.

### **Configuring Network Settings**

**Note:** Before configuring network settings, make sure to connect the Wi-Fi dongle (optional) or ethernet cable to the panel.

In the Settings menu, select 🌐 to open the Network menu, then complete the following steps:

| 💭 Personalant                           | C beauty)             |   |
|---|-----------------------|---|
| (b) | W-F                   | 2 |
|   | Chievest<br>an and an | 3 |
| 🐼 laurty<br>🔯 lipsart                   | Ruman<br>             | 3 |
|   | 974<br>944            | 2 |

Select *Wi-Fi* to connect the panel to the Wi-Fi network and view current connection status. Make sure the Wi-Fi function is enabled. In the Available network list, select your preferred Wi-Fi network, for example XXXX. Provide an access password if needed.

**IMPORTANT!** To connect to a Wi-Fi network, make sure the Wi-Fi dongle (optional) is properly connected to the panel. For more information, refer to page 29.

| 🗢 recentid          | < html/web/      | -   |
|---------------------|------------------|-----|
| 🖶 herent            | wn               | 0   |
| Distant<br>Distanti |                  | 6 Ø |
| an management       | Analalia ortexte | + 0 |
| 1. 46 (free)        | <b>T</b>         | é O |

- **Note:** If your preferred Wi-Fi network is not visible in the list, select it to refresh the list. To enter the Wi-Fi network manually, select 4.
- Select *Ethernet* to configure LAN settings. In the IP settings section select the network type between static and DHCP. If you set the network type as *Static* then select and enter the connection settings, such as IP address, gateway, network prefix length, and more.

**IMPORTANT!** To connect to a wired network, you need to properly connect an ethernet cable between the wired network device (such as a router or switch) and the panel.

| C Personalizati               | C must/Ment/   |        |
|-------------------------------|--|--------|
| Partner                       | MAC Addmine  | 3      |
| Derrer<br>Derrer<br>EB tonorr | Privatings<br>#* Automot<br>==========<br>Drawess<br>=========<br>Merowers Pada Sanga<br>Drail 1<br>==================================== | 2000 • |

•

- Enable *Portable hotspot* feature to share the Wi-Fi network to other wireless devices. Modify the network name and set an access password if necessary.

| 🗢 Permittet | 4. meteode / KHG/ Pertable hempes / |        |
|-------------|-------------------------------------|--------|
| <b>9</b>    | Persia tonan                        | 0      |
| Davine .    | Network care                        |        |
| () learn    | beach.                              | No     |
| 20 Serve    |                                     | 1.0000 |

- Note: For a secure connection, set the Wi-Fi encryption (Security field) as WPA2-PSK. Then enter the access password and select OK.
- Select Bluetooth to enable Bluetooth and connect to other nearby Bluetooth devices. This display supports • Bluetooth version 5.2 and can connect for example to a Bluetooth keyboard, mouse, and speaker. Select the following:
  - Device Name to enter a new device name. To confirm the modification, select OK at the prompt.
  - In the list of Available device, select the device you want to connect to.

| C Proceeding | 1 ligitezzi/fiketse8/   |        |
|--------------|---|--------|
| . Herenet    | Lexes   | ۲      |
|              | Barto Harra<br>Marco<br>Adata Arcar<br>Di anno Al 2005<br>Di anno Al 2005 | ÷<br>• |
|              | C   | 0      |

Make sure the pairing codes match on both devices and if they match, select **Pair** to confirm.

| Panel                                  | Portable Device  |
|--|--|
| Bluetootti pasiing oode<br>3 4 0 4 0 7 | Biostooth<br>Pairing Request<br>Table Theory Security Security<br>Is all with your Theory<br>Confirm that this code is<br>Security at this code is<br>Security at the Security<br>Dising attention of Security<br>Biometer attention code on<br>Security Security<br>Biometer attention code on<br>Security Security |
| (Texa)                                 | Conce (N)  |

Note: If the Bluetooth device is not visible in the list of available devices, make sure the device is nearby the panel and Bluetooth is enabled. Then select 4 to refresh the list.

Select VPN to configure VPN settings.

### **Configuring Device Settings**

In the Settings menu, select 🔲 to open the Device menu, then complete the following steps:

| Processinal Description | S ( Design ( )         |   |
|-------------------------|------------------------|---|
| @ network               | Auto Source Destations | • |
| P ••••                  | They                   | 2 |
| Treate                  | Depter 10              | 3 |
| EB typine               | State and              | 3 |
|                         | 11 mag                 |   |
|                         | A144                   |   |
|                         | 040                    |   |
|                         | (rel                   |   |

- Enable *Auto Source-Switching* to allow the system to automatically switch to the new source signal when the connected device is turned on.
- Select *Tiling* to configure the tiling related settings. Then do the following:

| 🗢 Personalizat | <pre>6/ Tester/Treep/</pre> |   |  |
|----------------|-----------------------------|---|--|
| C Trevet       | 776                         |   |  |
| D 1944         | Mercelar sectorys           | 3 |  |
| The second     | fore onto                   | 3 |  |
| Si intern      |                             |   |  |

- *Tiling*: Enable or disable the tiling function.

Note: HDMI output and Tiling function doesn't support Android and HDMI 3 source.

- *Monitor settings*: Configure the panel settings for creating a video wall. Specify the panel area (H monitors x V monitors) and assign the current panel position in the video wall. Then select **OK** to save the settings.

| Mooitor settings                                    |    |
|---|----|
| A surviva   |    |
| 8   |    |
| Venetiken   |    |
| Ser.  |    |
| 1   | ÷. |
| Previous your four advector spin managing to excess |    |
|   |    |

Note: You can configure up to 5x5 video wall.

| 1  | 2  | 3  | 4  | 5  |
|----|----|----|----|----|
| 6  | 7  | 8  | 9  | 10 |
| 11 | 12 | 13 | 14 | 15 |
| 16 | 17 | 18 | 19 | 20 |
| 21 | 22 | 23 | 24 | 25 |

The position ID will dynamically change, depending on H & V's values. H = x, V = y, Position Value Range =  $x^*y$ ; Value = 1~xy. (x=1~5, y =1~5).

It is counted from left to right, then up to down.

| Configuration | Total Resolution | Each Device |      |  |
|---------------|------------------|-------------|------|--|
| Configuration | Total Resolution | Н           | V    |  |
| 1x1           |                  | 3840        | 2160 |  |
| 2x2           |                  | 1920        | 1080 |  |
| 3x3           | 3840*2160        | 1280        | 720  |  |
| 4x4           |                  | 960         | 540  |  |
| 5x5           |                  | 768         | 432  |  |

**Note:** The solution will always be 3840\*2160, no matter how many devices are used for tiling. However, if the input source doesn't support 4K resolution, then the overall resolution will match the input source.

- *Frame comp*: If enabled, the system will automatically adjust the image to compensate for the gap between each display area.

**Note:** Frame comp function only works under tiling function.

• Select Device ID to assign a new ID to the panel. To confirm, select OK.

| Device ID |        |    |  |
|-----------|--------|----|--|
| 93        |        |    |  |
|           | Concel | ок |  |

- Select **SAMBA service** to enable or disable file and print service from the panel to other devices. Configure the following settings:
  - **Samba**: Enable or disable the Samba service.
  - Username: Enter username for accessing the Samba server.
  - User Password for Protection: Enable or disable password input when accessing the Samba server. If enabled, create up to 11 digit long password.

| C troubled | 1 Desire/ MAMAA service/      |   |
|------------|-------------------------------|---|
| C Mart     | Sea                           | • |
| O amos     | Destante                      | 3 |
| S bearty   | InterParameter for Production | 3 |

• Select Storage to view storage usage.

| O Personalized | <fermin <="" fitespi="" th=""><th></th></fermin>   |            |
|----------------|--|------------|
| - @ meant      | to the state of th | 305        |
| C marks        | 11   | 11.00      |
| 32 Serve       | tti Anno<br>111 mar  | 300 MB     |
|                | No man   | 6016<br>12 |
|                | a  |            |
|                | El men   | 1000 Mar.  |

• Select *Apps* to view apps information, clear apps data and cache, and force stop apps.

| Q. And and t | - lesk strent      |    |
|--------------|--------------------|----|
| D Anal       | Davie 4            | 24 |
| L. ter       | ji Kasta           | 3  |
| The second   | t alestari         | 5  |
| EB even      | 🚊 (C) and the      | 3  |
|              | 0 1                | 25 |
|              | 🔯 He Wing -        | 25 |
|              | C fage             |    |
|              | The search and the | 3  |
|              | The sector to      |    |

Select an app in the list to force stop it (select *Force stop*), view its storage and clear its data (select *Clear data*) and cache (select *Clear cache*), view app version and set permissions.

| O recolated | 4 Dynam / Apply / Dynama Marketynam / | O Providenci | + Semilian/Senitarian/American/America |
|-------------|---------------------------------------|--------------|--|
| (b) News7   | Time all a                            | Di tanan t   | Sterner -                              |
|             | -Barriel                              |              | Detaile                                |
| O see       | 7714                                  | S hearts     | Tera<br>Line                           |
| 23 tyttare  | for even                              | 22 Automa    | 61946                                  |

- Select OMS to set up remote management settings. For more information, refer to page 90.
- Select *Email* to configure email settings. Enter the IP, ID, password, SMTP address, and other required information. Select **OK** to save the settings.

| triel       |                 |
|-------------|-----------------|
| Test        |                 |
| 3417 Screet |                 |
| SHIP SING   |                 |
| SMTP Fort   |                 |
| 291         |                 |
| 100         |                 |
|             | 1 C.C.          |
| C thurst    | (Conn.) (Sites) |

### **Configuring Security Settings**

In the Settings menu, select 😨 to open the Security menu, then complete the following steps:



• Select **Screen Lock Password** to set screen lock password. Enter a 4-digit password twice at the prompt and then select **OK** to confirm.

| Now panaword       |                  |  |
|--------------------|------------------|--|
| Hereingen der till |                  |  |
| a state tog        | in any will been |  |
| Carries new page   | 1000cc 1         |  |
|                    |                  |  |
|                    |                  |  |
|                    |                  |  |

**Note:** To remove the screen lock password, select **Clear Screen Lock Password** (visible only if the password is set) and enter the current password. Then select **OK** to confirm.

| Orar passions     |          |  |
|-------------------|----------|--|
| Cowert pressured  |          |  |
| the second second |          |  |
|                   | (am) (m) |  |
|                   |          |  |

• Select *Advanced Setting* to set or modify the Advanced Setting password and enable or disable installing third party applications. Do the following:

**Note:** The DEBUG MENU advanced settings can be also accessed with the Advanced Setting password set in this menu.

a) Enter the Advanced Setting password at the prompt to access the advanced settings and then select **OK** to confirm.

Note: The default password is 1 + 2 + 3 + 4.

| Rammand.<br>Patroner e | Advanced Setting |  |
|------------------------|------------------|--|
|                        |                  |  |
|                        | Private d        |  |

b) Select any of the following items:

| C resulted              | () Incarty/Altanced Linking/    |   |
|-------------------------|---------------------------------|---|
| Hencel     Hencel     H | Own Provid                      | S |
| D been                  | 55                              | > |
| @ <b></b> •             | Aug 100                         |   |
| El types                | Obvious marts.                  | • |
|                         | Training any Term maning inter- |   |
|                         | the shift has                   |   |
|                         | THE Landser on Experise         |   |

- Change password: Enter the current password and twice the new password. Then select OK to confirm.

| Change password            |  |
|----------------------------|--|
| Current peerword           |  |
| Correct payment            |  |
| Nex passwort               |  |
| A sights largely permitted |  |
| Cardineous pressoni        |  |
| Confirm one primeral       |  |
| Caesal                     |  |

- *Reset password to default*: Enter the current password and select *Reset* to confirm. The password is reset to 1 + 2 + 3 + 4.

| Preset password in default? |       |
|-----------------------------|-------|
| Current pesswerd            |       |
| Carrient passward           |       |
| Cover                       | Reari |

•

- Select CA to view and modify trusted CA certificates, user stored credentials, and more.
  - Select Trusted Certificates to view and modify trusted CA certificates.
  - Select User credentials to view and modify user stored credentials.
  - Select Install from storage to install credentials from the storage.
  - Select Clear all credentials to remove all user credentials.

Select Clear at the prompt to confirm.

| Clear all crecentia a" |  |
|------------------------|--|
| Doos Dee               |  |

- Under Permissions, select **Unknown source** and enable or disable installing third party software from an unknown source.
- Under Permissions, select *Install app from marketplace* and enable or disable installing third party software from *Optoma Marketplace*.
- Under Permissions, select **OSD/Launcher setting lock** and enable or disable modifying OSD menu settings.
- Under Clone, select *Import Launcher setting* to import launcher settings from the storage.
- Under Clone, select *Export Launcher setting* to export launcher settings to the storage.

#### Enabling or Disabling USB Wi-Fi/USB Disk

a) Press *Input* + 5 + 9 + 8 + 0 on the remote control.

The Dealer Menu opens.

| Dealer Menn          |    |     |   |
|----------------------|----|-----|---|
| subprocedurentings   |    |     |   |
| Acike Standly<br>Del | ×. | (FF | 3 |

b) Select *Advanced Settings*, then enter the Advanced Setting password at the prompt and select *OK*.
 Note: The default password for Advanced Settings is 1 + 2 + 3 + 4. Then select *CONFIRM*.



c) Select USB Disk Enable to enable or disable USB Wi-Fi/USB disk.

| Advanced settings    |   |       |      |
|----------------------|---|-------|------|
| LSB WIT Broke        |   | 0084  | 3991 |
| Carllok france       |   | ं भग  | 1    |
| Android input Trable | æ | DEC 4 | - 46 |

If the current setting is **OFF** and you want to enable the function, press the **Enter** button on the remote control. Then select **CONFIRM** and press the **Enter** button. The panel will automatically reboot so that the settings take effect.

| 100          | 0.6                   |
|--------------|-----------------------|
| 🔁 USS Jisk B | usk                   |
| Riasia anti- | na hang mada si bin r |
| CONFIRM      | CANCEL                |
|              | 1 (A.                 |

### **Configuring System Settings**

In the Settings menu, select 📲 to open the System menu, then complete the following steps:

| K dprimn/            |   |
|----------------------|---|
| awe a Tere           | 2   |
| tergetge             | tigat -   |
| ( Aspecies )         | 3   |
| Sature of Distance   | 3   |
| Pare -               | 5   |
| новас                | 5   |
| Transformer Davidson | <u>100</u> - 4  |
| 10004                | 3   |
|                      | Enter & Tares<br>Integrater<br>Anternet<br>Dartus and Distances<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proceed<br>Proced<br>Proceed |

· Select Date and Time to configure date and time related settings. Select any of the following:

| Q towns   | C. Science (Second Trans)                |                            |
|-----------|--|----------------------------|
| C Minutes | lation in other                          | <b>C</b> )                 |
| 🛄 💷 🖬     | 2 shared                                 | ~                          |
| Stars"    | ·T )                                     |                            |
| 55 (en 11 | 10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-1 |                            |
| 5         | t rezon<br>declaraciónes (C.M.           | <u>- 18-18</u> (*<br>Cille |

- Slide the *Auto date and time* switch to the right to set the date and time automatically. If you disable this function, then you can manually set the *Date* and *Time* settings.
- *Time Zone* to select/change the time zone for your area.
- Use 24-hour format (13:00) to enable or disable displaying time in 24-hour format.
- Select Language to select one of the available language options: English, French, Spanish, Traditional Chinese, Simplified Chinese, Portuguese, German, Dutch, Polish, Russian, Czech, Danish, Swedish, Italian, Turkish, Arabic, Romanian, Hungarian, Finnish, or Norwegian.
- Select *Keyboard* to view and manage keyboards.
- Select Startup and Shutdown to configure settings related to starting and shutting down the panel. Select any
  of the following:

| O recented | C. Street / Name and Stations./       |                    |
|------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------|
| . Marrieri | Siebalean Trees                       | and statements and |
| D trent    | The alty of the startup (Mark Arrenty | C30                |
| O sears    | Trees                                 |                    |
| 11 Same    | Direct particul of the Mindle         | 0                  |

- **Startup Input Source** item to select one of the available startup input options: Last shutdown input, Android, HDMI1, HDMI2, HDMI3, or Type-C.

- Standby after startup (black screen) to enable or disable standby after startup.
- **Close power off reminder** to enable or disable closing power off reminder when the panel is scheduled to shut down.
- *Timers*  $\Rightarrow$  + to set a startup and shutdown timer. To create a schedule, do the following:
  - a) To enable startup timer and/or shutdown timer, select the radio key next to **Startup timer** and **Shutdown timer**.
  - b) Set the time and select the day(s) when you want the panel to follow this startup or shutdown schedule.
  - c) Select Add to save the timer.



d) Enable (or disable) the new schedule in Timers menu.

| a       | <ul> <li>arany service of decomplete</li> </ul> | 284               |
|---------|---|-------------------|
|         | di harang bi kadi da ang n                      | and drive and the |
| C AL    | Sandy this care a slocastery                    | 30                |
| © 28.9. | Sec.  | 8                 |
|         | the spream of a second                          | 00                |
|         |   |                   |

#### Note:

- Select in to modify or remove the schedule.
- You can set up to 3 schedules.
- Select *Power* to configure power settings. Select any of the following:

| O Percentiant                              | < union/Press     |    |
|--|-------------------|----|
| (1) 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 | Eigend Presser Or | 00 |
| 🖾 Sene                                     | Direct Prove Do   | 00 |
| 10 inants                                  | Jain Prove 28     | 二. |
|  | Vinter en Lidis   | 0  |

- Signal Power On to enable or disable starting up the panel when an input signal is detected.
- *Direct Power On* to enable or disable starting up the panel from the power source. Note: *Direct power on feature aids installations that rely on power-on timers.*

- *Auto Power Off* item to select one of the available time intervals in minutes to automatically power off the panel when there is no input source found: Off (function is disabled), 5, 10, 15, 20, 25, 30, 35, 40, 45, 50, 55, or 60.
- Wake on LAN to enable or disable remotely starting up the panel over LAN.

Note: Wake on LAN can't work and will be gray out when Power Mode (Standby) is set to Active.

- Select *HDMI CEC* to enable or disable any of the available options: Display on then player on, Display off then player off, Player on then display on, or Player off then display off.
- Select *Power Mode Standby* item to select one of the available options: Eco or Active. By default, *Active* item is not visible. To enable *Active* option, do the following:
  - a) Press *Input* + 5 + 9 + 8 + 0 keys on the remote control.

The Dealer Menu opens.

| Dealer Menu       |    |                |    |
|-------------------|----|----------------|----|
| Advanced settings |    |                |    |
| Adec Standle      | 27 | с <del>н</del> | 10 |
| 521               |    |                |    |

b) Select Active Standby to enable or disable the Active Standby function.

| Dealer Menu       |         |    |
|-------------------|---------|----|
| Advarced settings |         |    |
| Active Blandby    | <br>OFF | 55 |
| Ext               |         |    |

If the current setting is **OFF** and you want to enable the function, press the **Enter** button on the remote control to activate the function. The modifications will take effect immediately.

| Dealer Menu       |   |      |     |
|-------------------|---|------|-----|
| Advanced sattings |   |      |     |
| and we Standay    | - | 0PEN | 100 |
| Let               |   |      |     |

c) Select Exit and press the Enter button on the remote control to close the Dealer Menu.

Active option is available in the System  $\Rightarrow$  Power Mode Standby menu.

| marray. | 6  | and a |
|---------|----|-------|
| - Maria | he |       |
| -24     |    | .0    |
|         |    |       |

#### Note:

- **OMS** and LAN control remote power on functions will only work when Power Mode Standby is set to **Active**.
- Active Standby mode consumes higher power since system only turns off backlight and mainboard is still working to listen for power on command from LAN and OMS. If you don't have remote power on requirement, we suggest using Eco. Standby mode to save more power.
- It is also highly recommended that you switch back to **Eco.** Standby mode and turn off the panel for a period of time. It will help the panel system to release memory and CPU loading.

· Select Update to configure upgrading options. Select any of the following:

| O innumberit | < - Statum Dilatera F  |   |
|--------------|--|---|
| di interest  | (I'''' is introduced approximation of the second seco |   |
| D Dente      | Litel Subware Upprofe  | 3 |
| 1 licente    |  |   |
| 10           |  |   |

- OTA (Over-The-Air) Software Upgrade to enable or disable upgrading software over Internet. Select Check update when power on to check for update file from the Internet when power on. Select Auto Download to enable downloading update files automatically when power on.
   To update the system manually, do the following:
  - a) Select UPDATE at the prompt.

| System update avvilable<br>Mos System artistate erowi |            |
|---|------------|
|   | GODE CAN'L |

b) Select DOWNLOAD at the System Update window.

| Contart Lipiteti<br>Annan Lipiteti |  |
|------------------------------------|--|
| Second States Street Lines         |  |
|                                    |  |
| :::::                              |  |

c) Select UPDATE to start the update process.



Wait until the update process is complete.

Note: Upgrading software over Internet requires network connectivity.

- USB Software Upgrade to update the system from a USB flash disk.
  - **Note:** To proceed with upgrading software, save the upgrade file to the USB flash disk first, then connect the disk to any USB port on the panel. Open Advanced Settings ⇒ System ⇒ Update ⇒ USB Software Upgrade and select **Start** at the prompt.



**Note:** If you upgrade panel's firmware from a USB storage, uncompress the upgrade file first and then copy the uncompressed file to the USB root directory. Make sure the USB flash disk is formatted as FAT32.

#### **IMPORTANT!**

- During the update process, either OTA or from a USB storage, DO NOT power off the panel and DO NOT remove the USB dongle from the panel. Doing so will damage the system.
- If you update the panel from a USB storage then all user data saved to the USB storage will be wiped out. If you update the panel over Internet (OTA) then all user data remains intact.
- Select Legal to view Terms and conditions of use, Privacy policy, Cookie policy, and Open Source and Third party software license.

| O recented | 3 (mm / sept /                   |   |
|------------|----------------------------------|---|
| Antonia    | Service and conditions of our    | * |
| 🖾 terre    | Presson participa                |   |
| () some    | tere Geolegiality                | * |
| SI som     | loss loss and history when items | 7 |

From the Home screen, select **\*\*\*** and press the **Enter** button on the remote control to view the Apps list.

#### Note:

- To install a third party application, you must first enable the Unknown source setting in the Security ⇒
   Advanced Settings menu. Refer to page 56.
   You can then install the downloaded APK (Android Package) file into your system.
- Generally, you can use the remote control to nagivate through the options when using an app. However, some of apps are not workable with the remote control. If this happens, please connect a mouse to the panel.
- **IMPORTANT!** The embedded Android 11 operation system is not standard Android. As such, Google Play is not available in the Apps list. The installed third party application might not work properly if it is not designed for panel. Optoma will not guarantee that these self-installed Apps work. Optoma flat panel displays run a customized Android operating system and do not support Google Play Services. The operating system may not be compatible with all third-party Android apps. Third-party Android apps can vary in quality and some even contain malicious codes, which could compromise system security and may invalidate product warranty. Optoma makes no representations regarding the quality, security or suitability of any third-party apps and their compatibility with the Optoma flat panel. Optoma shall have no responsibility or liability with respect to any damage, faults, loss in functionality or security issues arising as a direct or indirect result of the installation of third-party apps on the flat panel. Optoma support in rectifying any issue which may result from the installation of third-party apps will be chargeable and may be limited. Information is correct at the time of writing and is subject to change.



### Creative Cast

Select creative Cast to start wireless sharing and projection via Wi-Fi or LAN.

#### **IMPORTANT!**

- The panel and your mobile device/computer must be connected to the same Wi-Fi or LAN network.
- While in use, make sure that you have access to the Internet.

#### **Supported Operating Systems for Casting**

| Collavision Senders | Available Version                   |
|---------------------|-------------------------------------|
| Windows             | Windows 7, 8, 8.1, 10, 11 and above |
| 💼 Mac               | Mac OS X 10.12 and above            |
| iPhone              | iOS 13 and above                    |
| 📫 Android           | Android 7.0 and above               |
| Chrome              | Chrome Browser OS V83 and above     |

#### **Proprietary Sharing**

| Features                 | Operation System   |
|--------------------------|--|
| Web Sharing (Web Sender) | Chrome Browser   |
| AirPlay Support          | iOS 9 and above  |
| ChromeCast               | <ul> <li>Android phone with Android 8.0 or later</li> <li>Android tablet with Android 8.0 or later</li> <li>iPhone or iPad with iOS 14.0 or later</li> </ul> |

### **Mobile Device**

When the setup guide screen appears, scan the QR code to download and install the **Creative Cast** app onto your mobile device.

| WPS 7519 | 4538               |         |   |
|----------|--------------------|---------|---|
|          | Creati             | ve Cast |   |
|          | CC GETTING STARTED |         |   |
|          |                    |         | 1 |
|          | B                  |         |   |
|          |                    |         |   |

To connect to the panel, complete the following steps:

Note: The connection steps are described based on an iOS device.

1. Launch the Creative Cast app. Select the device and then tap Start Broadcast.



2. Enter the **Creative Cast** verification code from the launcher screen to establish the connection.



3. Tap any of the following:



- Mirroring to mirror your mobile device's screen to the panel.
- Photo to view and share photos.
- Camera to stream your mobile device's camera to the panel.
- Documents to view and share documents.
- Video to view and share videos.
- **Remote View** to mirror the panel screen to your mobile device with annotation and image saving feature.
- Smart Control to use your mobile device as a remote control to control the panel.
- Screen Control to mirror the panel screen to your mobile device. You can use your mobile device to operate the panel.
- Custom Menu to customize the Creative Cast menu in your mobile device.
- Settings to modify your mobile device's user name and view the Creative Cast version.
- 4. To stop the screen broadcast, tap



#### Computer

You can mirror the screen of your computer via Chrome browser or **Creative Cast**. To use either of these options, open the browser and enter to the URL field the IP address that is displayed on the launcher screen. For example, <u>http://10.5.13.83</u>.



• To download Creative Cast, select on the respective operating system icon next to Get Apps link.



 To start screen casting from Chrome browser, enter your preferred user name (UserName), LoginCode (verification code on the launcher screen) and select *Login*. Select what you want to share and then click *Share*.

#### Note:

• If you want to share audio during screen casting, select **1** on the launcher screen.



• The user name that you enter for screen casting will also be used in Moderation mode.

| Choose what to share<br>10.5.1568 works to share the conte | arla of your screens |  |
|--|----------------------|--|
| Entire Screen  | Window               | Chronie Tab  |
| Orante Tex:  |                      | te come an international de la come de<br>come de la come |
| 🔤 - Share fabracelo  |                      | Anne Canad   |

To stop sharing, do either of the following:

• Click Stop sharing on your browser or



Click on the launcher screen.



To start screen casting from desktop app, download the Creative Cast to your computer.

- 1. Launch the app and click on the device name.
  - If the panel is not visible in the Room List, input the panel's IP address manually to the Input IP address field. Press *Enter* to start searching for the device.



2. Enter the login code from the launcher screen and select *Join*.



3. Click any of the following:



- **Mirroring** to mirror your computer's screen to the panel.
- **Remote View** to mirror the panel screen to your computer with annotation and image saving feature.
- **PRO (Moderation Mode)** to select up to 4 screens to display on the panel. Enter the password and click *Start*.

Note: To modify the password, refer to "Creative Cast Settings" on page 71.



Select the screens to display.

|                 | toone with m (2)                         |          |       |
|-----------------|--|----------|-------|
| R. meringhanner | an a | ( Peres) | Card, |
| E. The space    | n an |          | 3     |

4. To exit the moderation mode, select *Leave* **[** 

### **Creative Cast Settings**

Select and then select any of the following icons to configure the **Creative Cast** launcher screen settings:

- **Grouping** to share the screen to other devices.
- Settings to manage connection settings, view Creative Cast version and upgrade software, configure login code settings, set the administrator password for the Moderator user, and enable or disable floating window feature.

| benestinty   |                | Security       |              |
|--------------|----------------|----------------|--------------|
| Willington   |                | Lage Same      | Banders: T.C |
| -            |                | Adres Personet |              |
| birth)       | 2.011          |                | Things       |
| •.           | 8468           | Farming        |              |
| William .    |                | - Reday Marine |              |
| Williamsetto | Ing the States |                | 08.40        |
| Merer        | 110.00         | Magnede        |              |
| •            |                |                | Upperty      |
|              |                |                |              |

• Minimize 💽 the menu bar.

# Creative Board

Select **Creative Board** to use the online collaborative whiteboard platform that can bring teams together to brainstorm, sketch and collaborate, anytime, anywhere.

Before using this app, ensure that a mouse is properly connected to the panel.

**Note:** The remote control is not workable with this app.

| NO WE COM             |                           |  |             |   |
|-----------------------|---------------------------|--|-------------|---|
|                       | 1                         |  |             | Background & Tompiste                     |
| and the second second |                           |  |             | Robot where provide takes or targetary to |
|                       |                           |  |             | COMPANY OF A COMPANY                      |
| - man                 |                           |  |             |   |
| <b>Selected in</b>    |                           |  |             |   |
| e-Sideboortes         | Termines (                |  |             |   |
|                       |                           |  |             |   |
|                       |                           |  |             |   |
|                       |                           |  |             |   |
|                       | Conversion III            | Garanti  | Extend      |   |
|                       | differences of the second |  |             |   |
|                       |                           |  |             |   |
|                       |                           |  |             |   |
|                       |                           | and the second s | Torgonala . |   |
|                       | Carroral                  | Contended  |             |   |
|                       |                           | <b> </b>   | - I man h   |   |

To start using the app, do the following:

1. Select the *Create new session* tab. Then select a background or template for your content.

Note: To access your cloud sessions, login to Creative Board first.

- To open a recent session, select on the *Home* tab and under Recent category, select on the session you want to continue.
- To open a collaboration (saved to the cloud) or non-collaboration (saved locally) session, under Your session category, select the session you want to continue.
- 2. Select *Create* and use any of the activities described in the table below:
  - **Note:** The floating board is home to many of the primary features found in the **Creative Board** app, which are detailed here.

|   | ltem                        | Description  |  |
|---|-----------------------------|--|--|
| ÷ | Move the<br>floating board  | Click and drag to move the floating board to your preferred location on the screen.      |  |
|   | Minimize the floating board | Select the 📫 icon to minimize the floating board. Select 🔊 to expand the floating board. |  |
| Item |        | Description  |
|------|--------|--|
| 01   | Pen    | Write or draw a freeform line.<br>Select to select the desired line color and thickness.<br>- Select () to modify the color palette. You can select five palette colors based on the theme or select them individually.  |
| 0    | Eraser | Erase areas of your written texts or drawings. Select the eraser size and drag over the area you want to remove.   |
| ⊳    | Select | Select an object on the whiteboard. Select any of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the following to alter the selected area:         Image: Comparison of the selected area: |

| Item |                    | Description  |  |  |
|------|--------------------|--|--|--|
| Ø    | Geometric<br>shape | Draw a geometric shape.<br>Select the desired 2D, 3D shape with several color options, use a ruler to measure distances and draw lines, or use a protractor to measure and draw angles.  |  |  |
|      | More tools         | <ul> <li>Text editor for inputting and formatting text.</li> <li>Import JPG, PNG, or PDF files from different storage devices, including internal storage, USB storage, or cloud drive.</li> <li>Import a fully functional web browser window. You can capture screenshots, resize, relocate, duplicate, and delete the browser window.</li> <li>Import a fully functional web browser window.</li> <li>Impo</li></ul> |  |  |
| +    | Add a page.        |  |  |  |
|      | Menu               | <ul> <li>Select any of the following options:</li> <li><i>New</i> to create a new session.</li> <li><i>Open</i> to open a collaboration or non-collaboration session.</li> <li><i>Save/Save As</i> to save/save as the current content to collaboration or non-collaboration session.</li> <li><i>Import</i> to import a JPG, PNG, or PDF file.</li> <li><i>Export</i> to export the session as JPG, PNG, or PDF file.</li> <li><i>Settings</i> to enable or disable auto saving for non-collaboration session, eye protection writing mode, customize floating board, and update software.</li> <li><i>Tutorial</i> to read the Creative Board app tutorial.</li> </ul>   |  |  |

| ltem |  | Description  |
|------|--|--|
|      |  | Select any of the following to share the file to other devices:  |
| Å    |  | • <b>QR Code</b> to share the file with QR code.   |
|      |  | 3 unrealth SR code   |
|      |  | Thus, its grant could be is too meet rait to the starting WHD met works their index the CR starter.  |
|      | Share  |  |
|      |  | E <u>rror</u> y  |
|      |  | <b>Note:</b> Before scanning the QR code to download the file, make sure the panel and your mobile device are connected to the same Wi-Fi network.                 |
|      |  | • <i>Email</i> to send the file by email.  |
|      |  | <b>Note:</b> If you want to send the file by email for the first time, you are prompted to configure email settings first. For more information, refer to page 53. |
|      |  | Zoom in or zoom out on the screen. Then select [] to open the zoom window. Move the red box to the area that you want to show on the screen.                       |
| Ð    | Zoom   | Select X to close the zoom window.   |
|      | Select a background or template for your content. Select <b>Select</b> . Then select from the <b>File Manager</b> or from the browser and set as a template for your s |  |
| 86   | Background<br>options  | Inclusion the File Manager of Hollin the browser and set as a template for your session.   |

| Item |               | Description  |  |
|------|---------------|--|--|
| Ŵ    | Delete a page | Delete all items/objects you draw in current page.   |  |
| 5    | Undo          | Undo your last action.   |  |
| Ç    | Redo          | Redo your last action.   |  |
|      | Page manager  | <ul> <li>View and manage all pages that are involved in the current session. Select any of the following:</li> <li>2/3</li> <li>(/) to open the previous or next page.</li> <li>Page number, for example 2/3 to open the page manager:</li> <li>1</li> <li>+ + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +</li></ul>   |  |
|      | Session name  | The default session name is "Untitled session".  To rename the session, select  and type in a new name at the prompt. Then select Save.  Note:  You can also rename the session on the Creative Board Home tab. Select the session and then select → Rename. Select Save at the prompt to save the modifications.  If the session is marked with the content it means it is an active collaboration session and if the icon is content it means it is a inactive collaboration session. All other sessions, make sure to be logged in to Creative Board. |  |

| Item   |                         | Description  |  |
|--|-------------------------|--|--|
|  |                         | Sign in to <b>Creative Board</b> with your <b>Creative Board</b> account or with your Google account to create collaboration sessions.   |  |
|  | Sign in                 | A sian in 🔿  |  |
| When signed in, select 🎲 to view account settings or select 📑 to log |                         | When signed in, select 🔯 to view account settings or select 📑 to log out.  |  |
|  |                         | Invite attendees to join the Google Classroom through the <b>Creative Board</b> .  |  |
|  |                         | On the Attendees tab $\equiv$ , select $+$ and then select any of the following options:   |  |
|  |                         | ≡ Attendens 101 +  |  |
|  |                         | 291 Deres  |  |
|  |                         | Better Jahlanneten (pite)  |  |
|  |                         | - Investor (1) // // //  |  |
|  |                         | www.2012221172RC (peed/wg))_Eddar -  |  |
|  |                         | C Statutien (0) minute V   |  |
|  |                         | Through the Google Classroom   |  |
|  |                         | By sending an email invitation with the session password   |  |
|  |                         | By sending a session code.   |  |
| 28   | Attendees<br>management | On the Attendees tab you can assign a role to the attendee (either viewer or editor), delete ( $2^{\circ} \Rightarrow =$ ) attendees, renew ( $1^{\circ}$ ) the session code, and configure ( $1^{\circ}$ ) attendee settings. |  |
|  |                         | Select $\stackrel{\circ}{\Rightarrow}$ to access the Group tab. Then select $+$ and enter the group information, such as group name and attendees. Select <b>Save</b> .  |  |
|  |                         | Chaine mark proop  |  |
|  |                         | Etiliagi Asserte   |  |
|  |                         |  |  |
|  |                         | Colonia principal<br>loca co   |  |
|  |                         |  |  |
|  |                         |  |  |
|  |                         |  |  |
|  |                         |  |  |
|  |                         |  |  |
|  |                         |  |  |
|  |                         | To modify group settings, select   |  |
|  |                         | View the Google Classroom that is related to your sign in account. Select : to change  |  |
| 140  | Google<br>Classroom     | to another classroom or select _ to post session link to Google Classroom.   |  |
| Pd   | management              | Test Class O da  |  |

#### File Manager



Select File Manager to manage files and folders.

#### **Managing Files**



Select a storage location and browse for a file or folder you want to view then press the **Enter** button to open a file or folder.

The table below will help you navigate File Manager and its included features.

|            | ltem              | Description   |
|------------|-------------------|---|
| <b>1</b>   | Images            | Display only image files in the selected storage location.                  |
| P.         | Videos            | Display only video files in the selected storage location.                  |
|            | Document          | Display only document files in the selected storage location.               |
|            | Music             | Display only audio files in the selected storage location.                  |
| 88         | Thumbnail<br>view | View files and folders as thumbnails.                                       |
|            | List view         | View files and folders as a list.   |
| A ↓<br>z ↓ | Sort              | Sort files and folders by name or by date in ascending or descending order. |
| Q          | Search            | Search files and folders using key words or names.                          |
| <u> </u>   | Software version  | View software version and update app (if necessary).                        |
| Ē.‡        | New Folder        | Add a new folder.   |



#### **Cloud Storage**

Select *File Manager*  $\implies$  *Cloud Storage* to create an account or use an existing account to access your cloud storage.

| Орюна  |                                  | • Alden                       |
|--|----------------------------------|-------------------------------|
| 1999   | <ul> <li>Builtaneer 2</li> </ul> |                               |
| 🗄 📶 and an and a second seco | Shared C the                     | $\dot{\gamma} > \dot{\gamma}$ |
| Decembra () (  |                                  |                               |
| 🛆 Dad Sange  |                                  |                               |
| 🛓 seres  |                                  |                               |
| to preserve  |                                  |                               |
| 🔁 rejel  | Percent Acc<br>Set of            | cilana i solan<br>coma        |
| سد- 🖬  |                                  |                               |
| 冒 >  |                                  |                               |
| JT. V.0:   |                                  |                               |
|  |                                  |                               |

To create an account:

- 1. Select  $P_{+}$  or *Add account*.
- 2. Select the drive type.



- 3. Follow on-screen instructions to create an account or sign in to your existing account.
- 4. After successful login, you are prompted to set a security PIN. Select **Setup** to set the PIN or **Skip** to skip this step.



**Note:** PIN code is used to protect user's cloud storage from being illegally accessed. When system status changes (for example, from standby to normal, from backlight off to on), a user must key in the PIN code they set up for verification in order to access their cloud storage.

Your account will be listed in the Cloud Storage menu.

| Catone                                   |                     |          |
|--|---------------------|----------|
| B.140                                    | 13 - Dan (far) (r.) |          |
| 11 11 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 1 | - Cane - Briter     | 25 T. A. |
|  |                     |          |
| Catio                                    |                     |          |
|  |                     |          |
| 1 Bornel                                 | C APY SM D          |          |

- 5. To manage your cloud storage account(s) in the File Manager, select any of the following:
  - A to add another cloud storage account.
  - 🖓 to lock the cloud storage account.
  - $\mathcal{R}_{a}$  to delete the cloud storage account.

**Note:** Locking and deleting the cloud storage account in the **File Manager** will only prevent or remove access to that cloud storage in the **File Manager** and will not lock or delete the cloud storage in its original location, for example in Google.

#### Setting a 4-digit PIN

If you skipped setting a 4-digit PIN during the initial cloud storage setup, then do the following:

1. Open **File Manager** and select **Cloud Storage** on the left side.



- 2. Select the desired cloud account you wish to configure a PIN for.
- 3. On the right side of the screen, select to set up a PIN to protect your cloud account from unauthorized access.



4. Enter a PIN code (4-digit number) in the *Enter a new PIN* field, then re-enter the same 4-digit PIN in the *Enter the PIN again* field to verify your new PIN.

| Set you PM | 0 | 2 | 3      |
|------------|---|---|--------|
|            | 4 | 5 | 6      |
|            | 7 | B | 0      |
|            |   | 0 | Detete |

5. Your new PIN has now been set up. Select **OK** to finish!

| Ketters ser    | eceasiuly. Please enter again. |  |
|----------------|--------------------------------|--|
| ocorda la tana | XUM TERRETAR                   |  |
|                | С ж <u>1</u>                   |  |

#### **Playing Multimedia Files**

#### Multimedia formats supported

| Media Type | Supported Format  |  |
|------------|---|--|
|            | Video support format (codec) up to 4K resolution:   |  |
|            | <ul> <li>.avi (MPEG-1, MPEG-2 MP@HL, MPEG-4 SP@L0-3, ASP@L0-5, H.264, MP, HP@Level<br/>4.1,H263, VP6, MJPEG)</li> </ul> |  |
|            | <ul> <li>.ts (MPEG-2 MP@HL, MPEG-4 SP@L0-3,ASP@L0-5, H.264 MP, HP@Level 4.1, VC1 AP,<br/>H265)</li> </ul>               |  |
| Video      | <ul> <li>.mpg, .mpeg (MPEG-1, MPEG-2 MP@HL, H.264 MP, HP@Level 4.1)</li> </ul>  |  |
|            | • .mp4 (MPEG-4 SP@L0-3, ASP@L0-5, H.264 MP, HP@Level 4.1, H265)   |  |
|            | <ul> <li>.mov (MPEG-4 SP@L0-3, ASP@L0-5, MJPEG, H.264 MP, HP@Level 4.1, H265)</li> </ul>                                |  |
|            | • .mkv (VP9, H.265)   |  |
|            | • 3gp (H.264 MP, HP@Level 4.1, H263, MPEG-4 SP@L0-3, ASP@L0-5)  |  |
|            | Audio support format (codec):   |  |
|            | <ul> <li>.wma (WMA/WMAPro: 128Kbps~320Kbps, 8KHz~48KHz sampling rate)</li> </ul>  |  |
|            | <ul> <li>.mp3 (MPEG Layer 3: 32Kbps~320Kbps, 32KHz~48KHz sampling rate)</li> </ul>                                      |  |
| Audio      | <ul> <li>.wav (PCM: Max 320Kbps, Max 48kHz sampling rate / ADPCM: 384Kbps, 8KHz ~ 48Khz<br/>sampling rate)</li> </ul>   |  |
|            | <ul> <li>.m4a (ACC: 24kbps ~ 384kbps, 16KHz~48KHz sampling rate)</li> </ul>   |  |
|            | <ul> <li>.ogg (Vorbis: Max 320Kbps, 8KHz~48KHz sampling rate)</li> </ul>  |  |
|            | Supported image format (with the maximum resolution):   |  |
| Image      | • .png(8k*8k)   |  |
| linaye     | <ul> <li>.jpeg(baseline 8k*8k progressive 4k*4k/.bmp(8k*8k)</li> </ul>  |  |
|            | • .gif(4k*4k)   |  |

#### Playing videos

Select the video you want play and press the Enter button to start playback.



During the playback, press the **Enter** button to open the playback control toolbar. Then select any of the following:

| Item    |                       | Description   |
|---------|-----------------------|---|
| ê       | List                  | Display video thumbnails.   |
| Ó       | Rewind                | Rewind video.   |
| Ó       | Previous video        | Skip to the previous video.   |
| 00      | Pause/Play toggle     | Select 🔲 to pause the playback. To resume, select 💽   |
| C       | Next video            | Skip to the next video.   |
| Ċ       | Fast forward          | Fast forward video.   |
| 80<br>8 | Loop/Play once toggle | Select 🙃 to play all video files in a loop or select 😑 to play the current video file in a loop.<br>Select 😝 to play through all videos in the list once. |

**Note:** To stop playback, press the **Back** button on the remote control. When the confirmation message appears, select **Confirm** and press the **Enter** button.



#### **Playing music**

Select the audio track you want to play and press the Enter button to start playback.



During playback, press the **Enter** button to open the playback control toolbar. The table below explains the functions available on the playback control toolbar.

| Item    |                          | Description   |  |  |
|---------|--------------------------|---|--|--|
| ê       | List                     | Display track thumbnails.   |  |  |
| Ô       | Rewind                   | Rewind the track.   |  |  |
| Ó       | Previous track           | Return to the previous track.   |  |  |
| 00      | Pause/Play toggle        | Select 🕕 to pause the playback. To resume, select 💽.  |  |  |
| 0       | Next track               | Skip to the next track.   |  |  |
| Ô       | Fast forward             | Fast forward the track.   |  |  |
| 80<br>8 | Loop/Play once<br>toggle | Select 👝 to play all tracks in a loop or select 🕞 to play the current track in a loop.<br>Select 😑 to play through all tracks in the list once. |  |  |

**Note:** To stop playback, press the **Back** button on the remote control. When the confirmation message appears, select **Confirm** and press the **Enter** button.

#### Viewing images

Select the image you want to display and press the **Enter** button to open it on the screen. The slideshow will automatically start.



Press the **Enter** button to open the image control toolbar. The table below explains the functions available on the image control toolbar.

| Item    |                          | Description   |  |  |
|---------|--------------------------|---|--|--|
| ê       | List                     | Display image thumbnails.   |  |  |
| 0       | Wallpaper                | Set the current image as the wallpaper.   |  |  |
| Ó       | Previous image           | Skip to the previous image.   |  |  |
| 00      | Pause/Play toggle        | Select 🕕 to pause the playback. To resume, select 🌔.  |  |  |
| Ô       | Next image               | Skip to the next image.   |  |  |
| 80<br>8 | Loop/Play once<br>toggle | Select 🔁 to play all image files in a loop or select 🔁 to play the current image file in a loop.<br>Select 🚍 to play through all images in the list once. |  |  |

**Note:** To stop the slideshow, press the **Back** button on the remote control. When the confirmation message appears, select **Confirm** and press the **Enter** button.

#### Screen Lock



To set the pin code for the first time, launch the Screen Lock app. Then select Set password.

| Set password           |                      |  |  |  |
|------------------------|----------------------|--|--|--|
| You have not set the p | assword, set up now? |  |  |  |
| Cance Simpassword      |                      |  |  |  |

The Advanced Settings  $\Rightarrow$  Security menu will open. To set the password, refer to "Configuring Security Settings" on page 54.

#### Browser 🔘

Select Browser to access web pages.



#### Optoma Marketplace 📬



Select Optoma Marketplace to visit the built-in app store and to download and install other third-party apps to the panel.

**Note**: To install third-party apps, make sure the **Install app from marketplace** option is enabled in the Settings  $\Rightarrow$ Security  $\Rightarrow$  Advanced Setting  $\Rightarrow$  Permissions section. Refer to page 56.



#### Disclaimer for unauthorized apps on Creative Touch range Android-based displays

For system security, Optoma's flat panel displays run on a customized Android operating system. Additionally Optoma flat panel displays do not support Google Play Services. Optoma has streamlined the Android operating system so only modules related to display features remain. The customized Android operating system may not be compatible with all third-party Android apps. Third-party Android apps can vary in quality and some even contain malicious codes, which could compromise system security and functionality and may invalidate your product warranty.

Optoma makes no representations regarding the quality, security or suitability of any third-party apps and their compatibility with the Optoma flat panel. Optoma shall have no responsibility or liability with respect to any damage, faults, loss in functionality or security issues arising as a direct or indirect result of the installation of third-party apps on the flat panel. Optoma support in rectifying any issue which may result from the installation of third-party apps will be chargeable and may be limited.

#### Keeper 🛅

Select *Keeper* to open the Keeper app and begin cleaning and optimizing the data on the panel.

- For automatic cleaning of the memory, deleting temporary and junk files, select One Key Optimize.
- For manual cleaning of the memory, select *Clean Memory* [2]. For manual deleting temporary and junk files, select *Clean Trash* [2].



### MediaPlayer 🕑

Select *MediaPlayer* to create the playlist and play back the multimedia files.



#### **Creating a Playlist**

To create a playlist, do the following:

1. From the left side on the main page, select **Create My Playlist**. Then enter the playlist name and select **Confirm**.



2. Select **Add the files** to add the media files.



3. Select the media files that you want to add into the playlist. Then select **OK**.



The playlist detail will appear on the screen.

| 5 5,6 M.A | Pasta (M)<br>Barrie |                 |                  |             | • 1852 |
|-----------|---------------------|-----------------|------------------|-------------|--------|
| W. De W.  | ······              | <b>9</b> .549() | Annes            | a ta state  |        |
|           | traction -          | e               | ( <u>an</u>      | .)<br>``**` |        |
|           |                     | - 1990          | <b>10</b> 10     | e la dec    |        |
|           | Antes a             |                 | 1. <b>P</b> (\$) | en Staar    |        |
| · • •     |                     | 10.00           | 31               | с (с че     |        |
|           |                     |                 |                  |             |        |
|           |                     |                 |                  |             |        |

#### **Managing a Playlist**

To manage a playlist, you can do the following:

- Select Play (next to the file) to start the playback.
- Select More (next to the file) to access more options.
  - Select Remove to delete the file from the playlist.
  - Select Upward or Download to rearrange the order of a playlist.

| and the second second |                  |                      |
|-----------------------|------------------|----------------------|
| 🚥 this 🕫 🛛 🖶 this h   | us Bastan + Sau  | B Anton D Experiores |
|                       | Select Operation | Contrage (Carrow)    |
| 0 <b>14001</b> marce  | T forwa          | Arrie (Arrien        |
| Line 2010             | I west           |                      |
| · •                   | D. Server 1      | See Gaw              |
| a and a second        | 10 2906          | COME DOM:            |

- Select Play All to start playing all the media files.
- Select Play Mode to configure the slideshow settings.
   Select the transition duration and select Save to apply the settings.

| Play M        | ade    |
|---------------|--------|
| ang the paint |        |
| Ras Cas In    | at Oxs |
| (             | ( (m)  |
| 10            |        |

Note: By default, the Loop Playback is enabled.

- Select Select to select the desired file(s) and perform deletion.
- To delete the selected file(s), select Remove.
- To delete all files, select Select All. Then select Remove.

| ⊃ Cz,42Dda)           | Flay(cd1(3)<br>(19-4) 14 |                        |                                   |
|-----------------------|--------------------------|------------------------|-----------------------------------|
| - (149) <sup>64</sup> | + The loss of Australia  | + Ska IS laws          | n Thefangelenses                  |
| 31 L.                 |                          | 1 <b>06</b> 5 <u>1</u> | of ing ( 10 soul) .<br>Site store |
|                       | tions(s)                 | alas)                  | (5 k = 1 (2 h = 1)                |
| D *                   | - + - + + F              | 2 <b>999</b>           | Olen Gana                         |

• Select Rename to change the playlist name.

•

• Select Export to USB to export the playlist to the USB disk drive. Then select Confirm.



Waiting until the process is complete. Then select **Done**.

| - |   |   |
|---|---|---|
|   | Export to USB                           |   |
|   | 😓 Agrad Cargo (n. 1986)                 |   |
|   | C 100                                   |   |
|   | 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | _ |

Note: You can also access to this menu option in the main page.

- To return to the main page, press the **Back** button on the remote control.
- On the main page, you can do the following:
  - To play all playlists, select Play All.
  - To create a new playlist, select Create. For more information, refer to page 90.
  - To delete all playlists, select More > Delete all playlist.

| р намел         |                  | 32                        |         |               |             |
|-----------------|------------------|---------------------------|---------|---------------|-------------|
| Media Player(1) | 2005-00 <b>1</b> |                           |         | O, tok Access |             |
| in the di       | (8               |                           |         | lie:          | 1991        |
|                 | File bill (S     | R Phy                     | ife Nav | No.           |             |
|                 | - 44 M - 1       | and the second            |         |               | 28 <b>6</b> |
|                 |                  | Saleri Op                 | station |               | •••         |
|                 |                  | $\pi$ loss lineared $\pi$ |         |               |             |
|                 | a                |                           |         | 🖬 may         |             |
|                 |                  |                           |         |               |             |

- To play a playlist, select the desired playlist and select Play (next to the selected playlist).



- To manage a playlist, select the desired playlist and select More (next to the selected playlist).



- Enter details: view the playlist. For more information, refer to page 92.
- Delete: delete the playlist.
- Rename: rename the playlist.
- Upward/Download: sort the playlist. This function is applicable when you have more than one playlist.
- Export: export the playlist to the USB disk drive. For more information, refer to page 93.
- To enable or disable some additional features, select Settings (1).

| Joli Auto May                                   |  |
|---|--|
| Bohed, le Pisy                                  |  |
| Prover Ita Atha Pas                             |  |
| files Q-Care<br>Normalization (1997) - phone by |  |

- To create a playlist or manage the files directly on the device or USB disk drive, select **Storage** or **DISK DRIVE**. Then perform the desired operations.

| Control Control Page |
|----------------------|
|                      |
|                      |
| 💌 2009.              |
|                      |
| 🚆 DESK DELAT         |

• To use Media Player for PowerPoint files, you will need to convert the file to a picture format such as \*.jpg or \*.png.

To do the file conversion, complete the following steps:

1. Open the PowerPoint file and select **Save As** to save it as a JPEG or PNG format. **Note:** *Media Player supports: \*.jpg, \*.jpeg, \*.png, \*.bmp, \*.gif* 

| Change - Ce<br>Change - Ce<br>3 10 Chants<br>Deatop<br>B Doutrop<br>B D | Proverficies Preventation<br>Traverficies Materia Endolosi Protocolosi<br>Proverficies 97-2000 Presentation<br>PDS<br>275 Decomptai<br>Proverficies Template<br>Proverficies Materia Fondates Template<br>Proverficies 97-2001 Complete<br>Office Teams<br>Proverficies 97-2003 Acts - II<br>Proverficies 98-2003 Acts - II<br>Proverficies 98-2003 Acts - II<br>Proverficies Performant<br>Proverficies Performant<br>P |               |                  |
|--|--|---------------|------------------|
|  | OpenDocument Presentation  |               |                  |
|  | -Process   | Test: Versue: |                  |
| 10.40  |  | est converte  | 0                |
| <ul> <li>Hide Tolden.</li> </ul>   |  |               | freie • Sow farm |

2. Select **All Slides** to create a folder with each slide saved as a separate JPEG file.



3. Copy the slides folder to a USB disk drive or the internal storage of the device.

| Stonage            | USB-DRIVE   |             |           |      |           |
|--------------------|-------------|-------------|-----------|------|-----------|
| TE Play All        | IE Select   | Q Search    | (00) (Gd8 | Miny | O Retresh |
| < DUSB-DRIV        | e<br>Bili   |             |           |      |           |
| Natur.             |             | Moothail Ta | 1         |      |           |
| Andreid            |             | 3013/16/10  | 12.00.40  |      | 1.000     |
| 🖿 IT, Media, Plays | r, httadaas | 1010/05/10  | 12:40.00  |      | (Briefin) |
| la tereșiste       |             | 2003/05/10  |           |      | 20 7000   |

4. You can then create a playlist or play the entire folder directly.

| <ul> <li>CUSB-DRIVE - PP_M_duce</li> <li>Neme</li> <li>Tide_1_PG</li> <li>Side_3_PG</li> <li>Side_3_PG</li> <li>Side_4_PG</li> </ul> | earch Dine Orid 📰 Array                      | O Refresh<br>Stan<br>1277 SKB |
|--|--|-------------------------------|
| Nama<br>• Tida_1_PC<br>• Skis_2_PC<br>= Skis_3_PC<br>= Skis_4_PC   | 90204705710-10-20-40<br>92204705710-10-20-40 | 177.268                       |
| - 1845, 1.45<br>- 5845, 3.45<br>- 5845, 3.45<br>- 5845, 3.45<br>- 5845, 4.45   | 90204705710-10-20-40<br>92204705710-10-20-40 | 127.260                       |
| = Skie_3.PG<br>= Skie_3.P0<br>= Skie_4.P0  | 2020/05/10 10:09:49                          |                               |
| = 5554.3.490<br>= 5566.4.490   |  | SECTION                       |
| = Side_4.90  | 2023/05/10 19:29:48                          |                               |
|  |  | 05.5589                       |
|  | 2028/05/10 19:29:48                          | 56.6308                       |
| = Shee_SUPG  | 2023/06/10 19:29.48                          | 100.794B                      |
| = 1966, 5, 1911  | 2022/05/10 1922/48                           | 122.4665                      |
| = sldx,3.8%  | 2023/05/10 19:29-48                          | 125,0000                      |
| = 554x,3PG   | 2020/06/10 19:29-48                          | 83.03KB                       |
| - Side, 8,0%   | 302905/10 19:21-48                           | 14,0000                       |

#### **Quick Access**

To create a playlist remotely from your mobile device, do the following:

1. From the right side on the main page, use your device camera to scan the QR code. Then tap the link ("bytello.com") and tap 🕞 to add the files into the playlist.



2. Select the files from your mobile device and tap **Add**. A list of files appears on the screen. Then tap **Send** to continue.





#### Note:

- To add more files to the playlist, tap 💮.
- To delete the file from the playlist, tap 😑.

3. Configure the playlist related settings. Then tap **Confirm send** the playlist to the panel.



Once the transmission process is complete, the playlist playback will automatically start.



**Note:** You can cancel the playback by selecting **Cancel** when the "Play" message appears on the screen.



Select **WPS Office** to edit and manage any document format including PDF, Microsoft Word, PowerPoint, and Excel files.



Note: You can also open the document directly from File Manager. Refer to page 78.

#### Optoma Management Suite (OMS)™ 🔤

This panel can be controlled using the Optoma Management Suite. OMS is an intuitive cloud based display management solution, designed to streamline operations by monitoring, diagnosing and controlling audio visual displays from anywhere in the world via a single platform (Wi-Fi access required). OMS is the first management solution that is compatible across multiple display technologies such as projection, flat panels and LED displays enabling easy integration into existing display fleets while offering differing levels of access and control for users, ensuring devices are securely managed.

With an easy-to-use interface and 24/7, real-time monitoring, OMS enables users to check the status of display devices and make configurations to optimise performance. IT administrators and technicians can easily dispatch and broadcast emergency messages, alerts, and announcements across any display worldwide. Additionally, users can also remotely program and schedule devices for usage only during primary operating hours, as well as implement immediate shutdown for emergencies, reducing energy consumption, and lowering operating costs.\*

**Note:** \*OMS is an ever-evolving platform with features and functions being added over time. For the latest feature set please check with your local sales representative.

To start using **OMS**, complete the following steps:

- 1. Connect the panel and your wireless device to the same Wi-Fi network.
- 2. Open  $\bigcirc \Rightarrow Device \Rightarrow OMS$ .
- 3. Select the location of your choice for the device, either Worldwide or China. Then select **OK**.



- 4. Scan the QR code on the OMS launcher screen. Sign up and login to the Optoma Management Suite website.
- 5. Find device Serial Number and type it into the OMS system. Then select Next.

| Optom  | a Management Suite  | (OMS)   |
|--|---|---|
| 3<br>Sign at and login to the Dolorise<br>Management Scin veduce | 2<br>Erber seriet nation  | (Bantera Pila code  |
|  | 00H052344AAAVA0002  | $\checkmark$  |
| 1894. North Addina (2011   | Ganta Deriva paga anti AASta me<br>darina caling the second coordian almost | Confirm the Petropolo in the Lation<br>on the Brokes and the molectra |
|  |   |   |

|                | 0                                | Gardier DH Carle  | (1)<br>Territor Setting  |          |
|----------------|----------------------------------|-------------------|--|----------|
|                | Freefort Hartin                  | Gorden DH Tarle   | De vitre Gelt noye   |          |
| Fit sheats the |                                  |                   |  |          |
| Alter output   | - Maria a a sub-                 | a set of a dealer | a. (1.17), p. (1. a), a di-  |          |
| h harriera des | $\sim p p \approx + m p p + m r$ |                   | Of all and a second |          |
| E chatta       | (# #)                            |                   |  | 9        |
| E ( 1992       | (and a country                   |                   |  | <u>8</u> |
|                |                                  |                   |  |          |
| 10102000       |                                  |                   |  |          |
| - Addo ta      |                                  |                   |  |          |
|                |                                  |                   |  | 144      |

6. Confirm the PIN codes on both the launcher screen and web browser. If the codes match, select **Confirm** on the OMS launcher screen.

| PIN : XpBf  |
|---|
| Samal number: 00H062344AAAWA0002  |
| Rease confirm the Fiblicode matches the one shown on the<br>Options Management Suite wateries |
| This Piti will explore in 4 mins 80 secs.   |
| Carton Carfirm  |

| Care and PIH Confe                            |                         |   |
|---|-------------------------|---|
| Continuing PNI Access the series of events in | 4° 136.                 |   |
| L Setic humber                                | PN Code                 | 7 |
|   |                         |   |
|   | g si Third ang<br>Si na |   |

7. Type the device name and select **Done**.

| Baller Addings<br>Adda 1 May Report at |               |      |             |        |
|--|---------------|------|-------------|--------|
| T Det te Home                          | Serie Norther | 7,26 | 2.00.07.070 |        |
| the second                             |               | 12   | *5650*12495 | 9      |
|  |               |      |             | - Sec. |

Use **OMS** to manage your panel. For more information on OMS, refer to *https://onlinemanual.optoma.com/oms-en/bindingdevice*.

| 045           |  | UI. | - | 0 0 |   |
|---------------|--|-----|---|-----|---|
| (). Namesanti | A Decent   |     |   |     |   |
| - 1 farm      | 3 <del></del> 3  |     |   |     |   |
|               |  |     |   |     | _ |
|               | The second secon |     |   |     |   |
| •             | 1. 1. P. 1. R. 1. P. 1. R.   |     |   |     |   |
| -             |  |     |   |     |   |
|               |  |     |   |     |   |

8. To unpair your panel from the paired account, select *Unpair* on the launcher screen.

|   |                 | ement Suite (OMS)  |    |
|---|-----------------|--------------------|----|
|   | - Millionte     | Distances extended |    |
|   | and an          | Peret              |    |
| 8 | Former accounts | ) <b>***</b> *     | 10 |
|   | Derivation and  | Augenter to        |    |
|   |                 |                    |    |
|   |                 |                    |    |
|   |                 | 1 [                |    |

#### Dimensions















86-inch









Unit: mm



#### **Supported Timing List**

|     |                    |           | Clock  | Hf     | Vf     | In   | put Sour | ce     |
|-----|--------------------|-----------|--------|--------|--------|------|----------|--------|
| No. | Signal Timing Name | Reference | [MHz]  | [KHz]  | [Hz]   | HDMI | VGA      | Type C |
| 1   | 720*400 @70Hz      | IBM       | 28.322 | 31.788 | 70     | /    | Y        | /      |
| 2   | 640*480 @60Hz      | VESA      | 25.18  | 31.469 | 59.94  | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 3   | 800*600 @56Hz      | VESA      | 36     | 35.156 | 56.25  | /    | Y        | Y      |
| 4   | 800*600 @60Hz      | VESA      | 40     | 37.879 | 60.317 | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 5   | 1024*768 @60Hz     | VESA      | 65     | 48.363 | 60.004 | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 6   | 1280*768 @60Hz(RB) | CVTRB     | 68.25  | 47.396 | 59.995 | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 7   | 1280*768 @60Hz     | VESA      | 79.5   | 47.776 | 59.87  | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 8   | 1280*800 @60Hz     | VESA      | 83.5   | 49.702 | 59.81  | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 9   | 1280*960 @60.000Hz | VESA      | 108    | 60     | 60     | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 10  | 1280*1024 @60Hz    | VESA      | 108    | 63.981 | 60.002 | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 11  | 1360*768 @60Hz     | VESA      | 85.5   | 47.712 | 60.015 | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 12  | 1440*900 @60Hz(RB) | CVTRB     | 88.75  | 55.469 | 59.901 | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 13  | 1440*900 @60Hz CVT | CVT       | 106.5  | 55.935 | 59.887 | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 14  | 1680*1050 60Hz     | VESA      | 146.25 | 65.29  | 59.954 | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 15  | 1920*1080 60Hz     | CEA       | 148.5  | 67.5   | 60     | Y    | Y        | Y      |
| 16  | 640*480P594:3      | CEA       | 25.175 | 31.469 | 59.94  | /    | /        | Y      |
| 17  | 640*480P604:3      | CEA       | 25.2   | 31.5   | 60     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 18  | 720*480P604:3      | CEA       | 27.027 | 31.5   | 60     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 19  | 720*480P6016:9     | CEA       | 27.027 | 31.5   | 60     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 20  | 1280*720P5916:9    | CEA       | 74.175 | 44.955 | 59.939 | /    | /        | Y      |
| 21  | 1280*720P6016:9    | CEA       | 74.25  | 45     | 60     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 22  | 1440*480P604:3     | CEA       | 54.054 | 31.5   | 60     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 23  | 1440*480P5916:9    | CEA       | 54     | 31.469 | 59.94  | /    | /        | Y      |
| 24  | 1440*480P6016:9    | CEA       | 54.054 | 31.5   | 60     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 25  | 1920*1080P5916:9   | CEA       | 148.35 | 67.432 | 59.939 | /    | /        | Y      |
| 26  | 1920*1080P6016:9   | CEA       | 148.5  | 67.5   | 60     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 27  | 720*576P504:3      | CEA       | 27     | 31.25  | 50     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 28  | 720*576P5016:9     | CEA       | 27     | 31.25  | 50     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 29  | 1280*720P5016:9    | CEA       | 74.25  | 37.5   | 50     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 30  | 1440*576P5016:9    | CEA       | 54     | 31.25  | 50     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 31  | 1920*1080P5016:9   | CEA       | 148.5  | 56.25  | 50     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 32  | 1920*1080P2316:9   | CEA       | 74.175 | 26.973 | 23.976 | /    | /        | Y      |
| 33  | 1920*1080P2416:9   | CEA       | 74.25  | 27     | 24     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 34  | 1920*1080P2516:9   | CEA       | 74.25  | 28.125 | 25     | /    | /        | Y      |
| 35  | 1920*1080P2916:9   | CEA       | 74.175 | 33.716 | 29.97  | /    | /        | Y      |
| 36  | 1920*1080P3016:9   | CEA       | 74.25  | 33.75  | 30     | /    | /        | Y      |

| No  | Circul Timing Nome | Deference | Clock  | Hf     | Vf     | Input Source |     |        |
|-----|--------------------|-----------|--------|--------|--------|--------------|-----|--------|
| No. | Signal Timing Name | Reference | [MHz]  | [KHz]  | [Hz]   | HDMI         | VGA | Type C |
| 37  | 720(1440)*480i     | CEA       | 27     | 15.734 | 59.939 | Y            | /   | /      |
| 38  | 480p 59Hz          | CEA       | 27     | 31.469 | 59.94  | Y            | /   | /      |
| 39  | 480p 60Hz          | CEA       | 27.027 | 31.5   | 60     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 40  | 720(1440)*576i     | CEA       | 27     | 15.625 | 50     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 41  | 576p 50Hz          | CEA       | 27     | 31.25  | 50     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 42  | 720p 60Hz          | CEA       | 74.25  | 45     | 60     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 43  | 720p 59Hz          | CEA       | 74.176 | 44.955 | 59.94  | Y            | /   | /      |
| 44  | 720p 50Hz          | CEA       | 74.25  | 37.5   | 50     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 45  | 1080i 60Hz         | CEA       | 74.25  | 33.75  | 60     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 46  | 1080i 59Hz         | CEA       | 74.176 | 33.716 | 59.94  | Y            | /   | /      |
| 47  | 1080i 50Hz         | CEA       | 74.25  | 28.125 | 50     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 48  | 1080p 60Hz         | CEA       | 148.5  | 67.5   | 60     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 49  | 1080p 50Hz         | CEA       | 148.5  | 56.25  | 50     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 50  | 1080p 30Hz         | CEA       | 74.25  | 33.75  | 30     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 51  | 1080p 29Hz         | CEA       | 74.176 | 33.716 | 29.97  | Y            | /   | /      |
| 52  | 1080p 25Hz         | CEA       | 74.25  | 28.125 | 25     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 53  | 1080p 24Hz         | CEA       | 74.25  | 27     | 24     | Y            | /   | /      |
| 54  | 1080p 23Hz         | CEA       | 74.176 | 26.973 | 23.976 | Y            | /   | /      |
| 55  | 3840*2160 60Hz     | CEA       | 594    | 135    | 60     | Y            | /   | Y      |
| 56  | 3840*2160 50Hz     | CEA       | 594    | 112.5  | 50     | Y            | /   | Y      |
| 57  | 3840*2160 30Hz     | CEA       | 297    | 67.5   | 29.97  | Y            | /   | Y      |
| 58  | 3840*2160 25Hz     | CEA       | 297    | 56.25  | 25     | Y            | /   | Y      |
| 59  | 3840*2160 24Hz     | CEA       | 297    | 54     | 23.982 | Y            | /   | Y      |
## **RS232 Protocol Function List**

Note: The panel supports RS232 and RJ45 (port 23) control command.

### **RS232 Pin Assignments**



| Pin No. | Spec.<br>(from Panel side) |
|---------|----------------------------|
| 1       | N/A                        |
| 2       | TXD                        |
| 3       | RXD                        |
| 4       | N/A                        |
| 5       | GND                        |
| 6       | N/A                        |
| 7       | N/A                        |
| 8       | N/A                        |

### **RS232 RJ45 Control Connection**

| RS232 Settings  |      |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|-----------------|------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Baud Rate       | 9600 |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Data Bits       | 8    |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Parity          | None |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Stop Bits       | 1    |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Flow<br>Control | None |  |  |  |  |  |  |

| LAN Control Settings |            |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|----------------------|------------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| IP                   | Machine IP |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Port                 | 23         |  |  |  |  |  |  |

| ~         | X | X                           | X  | X     | X    |       | X    | X    | CR              |
|-----------|---|-----------------------------|----|-------|------|-------|------|------|-----------------|
| Lead Code |   | ce ID<br>es Device ID = 01) | Co | mmand | I ID | Space | Vari | able | Carriage return |

### **SET Command**

| Turne | Catagory     | Devenuetor     |          |   | Hey Code CMD   | Resp    | onse   |
|-------|--------------|----------------|----------|---|--|---------|--------|
| Туре  | Category     | Parameter      |          | D   | Hex Code CMD   | Success | Failed |
|       |              | Power off      | ~xx00 n  | n=0   | 7E 30 30 30 30 20 30 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       | Power        | Power on       | ~xx00 n  | n=1   | 7E 30 30 30 30 20 31 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       |              | Restart        | ~xx00 n  | n=3   | 7E 30 30 30 30 20 33 0d  | Р       | F      |
| -     | Power Mode   | Eco.           | ~xx114 n | n=0   | 7E 30 30 31 31 34 20 30 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       | (standby)    | Active         |          | n=1   | 7E 30 30 31 31 34 20 31 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
| -     | Treble       | 0 ~ 100        | ~xx95 n  | n=0-100   | 7E 30 30 39 35 20 30 0d<br>to<br>7E 30 30 39 35 20 31 30 30 0d | Р       | F      |
|       | Bass         | 0 ~ 100        | ~xx96 n  | n=0-100   | 7E 30 30 39 36 20 30 0d<br>to<br>7E 30 30 39 36 20 31 30 30 0d | Р       | F      |
|       | Balance      | 0 ~ 100        | ~xx99 n  | n=0-100   | 7E 30 30 39 39 20 30 0d<br>to<br>7E 30 30 39 39 20 31 30 30 0d | Р       | F      |
|       | Contrast     | utrast 0 ~ 100 | ~xx22 n  | n=0-100   | 7E 30 30 32 32 20 30 0d<br>to<br>7E 30 30 32 32 20 31 30 30 0d | Р       | F      |
| -     | Brightness   | 0 ~ 100        | ~xx21 n  | ~xx21 n n=0-100 7E 30 30 32 31 20 30 0d<br>7E 30 30 32 31 20 30 0d<br>7E 30 30 32 31 20 31 30 30 0d |  | Р       | F      |
|       |              | Standard       |          | n=1   | 7E 30 30 32 35 32 20 31 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       |              | Meeting        |          | n=4   | 7E 30 30 32 35 32 20 34 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
| SET   | Sound Mode   | User           | ~xx252 n | n=2   | 7E 30 30 32 35 32 20 32 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       |              | Classroom      |          | n=3   | 7E 30 30 32 35 32 20 33 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       |              | Movie          |          | n=5   | 7E 30 30 32 35 32 20 35 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       | Volume       | 0 ~ 100        | ~xx81 n  | n=0-100   | 7E 30 30 38 31 20 30 0d<br>to<br>7E 30 30 38 31 20 31 30 30 0d | Р       | F      |
|       | Video Mute   | Off            | ~xx13 n  | n=0   | 7E 30 30 31 33 20 30 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       | video ividie | On             |          | n=1   | 7E 30 30 31 33 20 31 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       | Mute         | Off            | ~xx80 n  | n=0   | 7E 30 30 38 30 20 30 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       | Wate         | On             | 200011   | n=1   | 7E 30 30 38 30 20 31 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       |              | HDMI1          |          | n=1   | 7E 30 30 31 32 20 31 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       |              | HDMI2          |          | n=15  | 7E 30 30 31 32 20 31 35 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       | Input Source | HDMI3          | ~xx12 n  | n=16  | 7E 30 30 31 32 20 31 36 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       | input Source | USB Type C     |          | n=27  | 7E 30 30 31 32 20 32 37 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       |              | Slot in PC     |          | n=25  | 7E 30 30 31 32 20 32 35 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       |              | Android        |          | n=24  | 7E 30 30 31 32 20 32 34 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       |              | 4:3            |          | n=1   | 7E 30 30 36 30 20 31 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       | Aspect Ratio | 16:9           | ~xx60 n  | n=2   | 7E 30 30 36 30 20 32 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       |              | PTP            |          | n=14  | 7E 30 30 36 30 20 31 34 0d                                     | Р       | F      |
|       | Language     | English        | ~xx70 n  | n=1   | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 31 0d  | Р       | F      |
|       | Language     | Français       |          | n=3   | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 33 0d  | Р       | F      |

| Tuna | Cotogony               | Deremeter              |          |         | Her Code CMD   | Resp    | onse   |
|------|------------------------|------------------------|----------|---------|--|---------|--------|
| Туре | Category               | Parameter              |          | D       | Hex Code CMD   | Success | Failed |
|      |                        | Español                |          | n=5     | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 35 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Traditional<br>Chinese |          | n=13    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 31 33 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Simplified<br>Chinese  |          | n=14    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 31 34 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Português              |          | n=6     | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 36 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | German                 |          | n=2     | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 32 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Dutch                  |          | n=8     | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 38 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Polish                 |          | n=7     | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 37 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Russia                 |          | n=17    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 31 37 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      | Language               | Czech                  | ~xx70 n  | n=19    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 31 39 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Danish                 | 1        | n=24    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 32 34 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Swedish                | 1        | n=9     | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 39 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Italian                |          | n=4     | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 34 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Turkish                | 1        | n=22    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 32 32 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Arabic                 |          | n=20    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 32 30 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Romanian               |          | n=27    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 32 37 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Hungarian              |          | n=18    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 31 38 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Finnish                | 1        | n=11    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 31 31 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Norge                  | 1        | n=10    | 7E 30 30 37 30 20 31 30 0d   | Р       | F      |
| Ì    |                        | Presentation           |          | n=1     | 7E 30 30 32 30 20 31 0d  | Р       | F      |
| SET  |                        | Bright                 | 1        | n=2     | 7E 30 30 32 30 20 32 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      | Picture Mode           | Cinema                 | ~xx20 n  | n=3     | 7E 30 30 32 30 20 33 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | User                   |          | n=5     | 7E 30 30 32 30 20 35 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | HDR                    |          | n=21    | 7E 30 30 32 30 20 32 31 0d   | Р       | F      |
| -    | Color                  | 0 ~ 100                | ~xx45 n  | n=0-100 | 7E 30 30 34 35 20 30 0d<br>to<br>7E 30 30 34 35 20 31 30 30 0d       | Р       | F      |
| -    | Backlight              | 0 ~ 100                | ~xx251 n | n=0-100 | 7E 30 30 32 35 31 20 30 0d<br>to<br>7E 30 30 32 35 31 20 31 30 30 0d | Р       | F      |
| ľ    |                        | Cool                   |          | n=2     | 7E 30 30 33 36 20 32 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      | Color Temp             | Standard               | ~xx36 n  | n=1     | 7E 30 30 33 36 20 31 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | Warm                   |          | n=4     | 7E 30 30 33 36 20 34 0d  | Р       | F      |
| Ī    | <b>F</b>               | Unfreeze               |          | n=0     | 7E 30 30 30 34 20 30 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      | Freeze                 | Freeze                 | ~xx04 n  | n=1     | 7E 30 30 30 34 20 31 0d  | Р       | F      |
| Ì    |                        | Off                    |          | n=0     | 7E 30 30 32 35 30 20 30 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | 2                      |          | n=2     | 7E 30 30 32 35 30 20 32 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      | Pixel shift interval   | 3                      |          | n=3     | 7E 30 30 32 35 30 20 33 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      | (min)                  | 5                      | ~xx250 n | n=5     | 7E 30 30 32 35 30 20 35 0d   | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | 30                     | 1        | n=30    | 7E 30 30 32 35 30 20 33 30 0d  | Р       | F      |
|      |                        | 60                     | 1        | n=60    | 7E 30 30 32 35 30 20 36 30 0d  | Р       | F      |
| -    | Remote control command | Vol -                  | ~xx140 n | n=17    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 31 37 0d  | Р       | F      |

| Turne | Cotomorry                  | Devementer                    | 0             |         | Hey Code CMD                    | Response |        |  |
|-------|----------------------------|-------------------------------|---------------|---------|---------------------------------|----------|--------|--|
| Туре  | Category                   | Parameter                     | Parameter CMI |         | Hex Code CMD                    | Success  | Failed |  |
|       |                            | Vol +                         |               | n=18    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 31 38 0d   | Р        | F      |  |
|       |                            | Remote UP                     |               | n=10    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 31 30 0d   | Р        | F      |  |
|       |                            | Remote DOWN                   |               | n=14    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 31 34 0d   | Р        | F      |  |
|       |                            | Remote LEFT                   |               | n=11    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 31 31 0d   | Р        | F      |  |
|       | Remote control             | Remote RIGHT                  |               | n=13    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 31 33 0d   | Р        | F      |  |
|       | command                    | Remote OK                     | ~xx140 n      | n=12    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 31 32 0d   | Р        | F      |  |
|       |                            | Remote Menu<br>Key            |               | n=20    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 32 30 0d   | Р        | F      |  |
| SET   |                            | Remote Input<br>source        |               | n=47    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 34 37 0d   | Р        | F      |  |
|       |                            | Remote Exit                   |               | n=74    | 7E 30 30 31 34 30 20 37 34 0d   | Р        | F      |  |
|       | Display message on the OSD |                               | ~xx210        | nnn     | 7E 30 30 32 31 30 20 nnn od     | Р        | F      |  |
|       | Reset To Default           |                               | ~xx112        | n=1     | 7E 30 30 31 31 32 20 31 od      | Р        | F      |  |
|       |                            | OSD lock On<br>with password  | ~xx239        | 1 ~nnnn | 7E 30 30 32 33 39 20 31 20 a 0d | Р        | F      |  |
|       | OSD lock                   | OSD lock Off<br>with password | ~xx239        | 2 ~nnnn | 7E 30 30 32 33 39 20 32 20 a 0d | Р        | F      |  |

### **GET Command**

| <b>T</b> | 0.1  | 0115                          |                          |                               | Response            |              |         |   |  |
|----------|--|-------------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------------|---------------------|--------------|---------|---|--|
| Туре     | Category   | CME                           | )                        | Hex Code CMD                  | Success             | Parameter    | Failed  |   |  |
|          | Damas  |                               |                          | 7E 30 30 31 32 34 20          | Ok0                 | Power off    | F       |   |  |
|          | Power  | ~xx124 n                      | n=1                      | 31 0D                         | OK1                 | Power on     | F       |   |  |
|          | Contrast   | ~xx126 n                      | n=1                      | 7E 30 30 31 32 36 20<br>31 0D | $()K()_{-1}()()$    |              | F       |   |  |
|          | Brightness   | ~xx125 n                      | n=1                      | 7E 30 30 31 32 35 20<br>31 0D | OK0-100             | 0-100        | F       |   |  |
|          | Volume   | ~xx120 n                      | n=1                      | 7E 30 30 31 32 30 20<br>31 0D | OK0-100             | 0-100        | F       |   |  |
|          | Video Mute   | ~xx363 n                      | n=1                      | 7E 30 30 33 36 33 20          | OK0                 | Off          | F       |   |  |
|          | VIGEO Mute   | ~XX303 II                     | 11-1                     | 31 0D                         | OK1                 | On           | F       |   |  |
|          | Mute   | ~xx356 n                      | n=1                      | 7E 30 30 33 35 36 20          | OK0                 | Off          | F       |   |  |
|          | witte  | ~xx350 II                     | n= 1                     | 31 0D                         | OK1                 | On           | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK1                 | Standard     | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK2                 | User         | F       |   |  |
|          | Sound Mode   | ~xx139                        | n=1                      | 7E 30 30 31 33 39 20<br>31 0D | OK3                 | Classroom    | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | 5100                | OK4          | Meeting | F |  |
|          |  |                               | OK5                      | Movie                         | F                   |              |         |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK7                 | HDMI1        | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK8                 | HDMI2        | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          | 7E 30 30 31 32 31 20          | OK9                 | HDMI3        | F       |   |  |
|          | Input Source   | ~xx121 n                      | n=1                      | 31 0D                         | OK23                | USB Type C   | F       |   |  |
| GET      |  |                               |                          |                               | OK20                | Android      | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK21                | Slot in PC   | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK1                 | 4:3          | F       |   |  |
|          | Aspect Ratio   | ~xx127 n                      | n=1                      | 7E 30 30 31 32 37 20          | OK2                 | 16:9         | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          | 31 0D                         | OK14                | PTP          | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK1                 | Presentation | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK2                 | Bright       | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          | 7E 30 30 31 32 33 20          | OK3                 | Cinema       | F       |   |  |
|          | Picture Mode   | ~xx123 n                      | n=1                      | 31 0D                         | OK5                 | User         | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK10                | DICOM SIM.   | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK21                | HDR          | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          |                               | OK1                 | Cool         | F       |   |  |
|          | Color Temp   | ~xx128 n                      | n=1                      | 7E 30 30 31 32 38 20          | OK0                 | Standard     | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               |                          | 31 0D                         | OK3                 | Warm         | F       |   |  |
|          |  |                               | 7E 30 30 34 35 31 20 OK0 |                               | OK0                 | Disconnected | F       |   |  |
|          | $M/I \Delta N status   ~yy451 n   n=1  $                     | 31 0D                         | OK1                      | Connected                     | F                   |              |         |   |  |
|          | WLAN Mac<br>address  | ~xx555 n                      | n=2                      | 7E 30 30 35 35 35 20          | Oknn:nn:nn:nn:nn:nn | Mac Address  | F       |   |  |
|          | WLAN IP<br>address ~xx451 n n=2 7E 30 30 34 35 31 2<br>32 0D | 7E 30 30 34 35 31 20<br>32 0D | Oknnn:nnn:nnn:nnn        | IP address                    | F                   |              |         |   |  |
|          | LAN status   | ~xx87 n                       | n=1                      | 7E 30 30 38 37 20 31 0D       | OK0                 | Disconnected | F       |   |  |
|          |  | 7707 11                       | 1                        |                               | OK1                 | Connected    | F       |   |  |

| Tune   | Cotorom                        | OME                      |       | Hay Code CMD                     | Re   | sponse  |        |
|--------|--------------------------------|--------------------------|-------|----------------------------------|--|---|--------|
| Туре   | Category                       | CME                      | ,     | Hex Code CMD                     | Success                                    | Parameter   | Failed |
|        | LAN Mac<br>address             | ~xx555 n                 | n=1   | 7E 30 30 35 35 35 20<br>31 0D    | Oknn:nn:nn:nn:nn:nn                        | Mac Address   | F      |
|        | LAN IP<br>address              | ~xx87 n                  | n=3   | 7E 30 30 38 37 20 33 0D          | Oknnn:nnn:nnn:nnn                          | IP address  | F      |
|        | FW version                     | ~xx122 n                 | n=1   | 7E 30 30 31 32 32 20<br>31 0D    | Oknnnnnnnnnnnnn<br>(ex.<br>20190926164814) | FW version  | F      |
|        | Usage hour                     | ~xx108 n                 | n=1   | 7E 30 30 31 30 38 20<br>31 0D    | Oknnnn                                     | Suage hours   | F      |
|        | Device type                    | ~xx149 n                 | n=1   | 7E 30 30 31 34 39 20<br>31 0D    | OK4  | Device type = FP  | F      |
|        |                                |                          | n=1   | 7E 30 30 31 35 30 20<br>31 0D    | OKabbbbbccddddee<br>(Note*1)               |   | F      |
|        |                                |                          | n=2   | 7E 30 30 31 35 30 20<br>32 0D    | Oknnn                                      | Device native<br>resolution                                   | F      |
| GET    |                                |                          | n=3   | 7E 30 30 31 35 30 20<br>33 0D    | Oknnn (ex.<br>OKHDMI1)                     | Input source  | F      |
| GET    |                                |                          | n=4   | 7E 30 30 31 35 30 20<br>34 0D    | Oknnn (ex.<br>OK1920x1080)                 | Source<br>resolutuion   | F      |
|        | Information<br>string          | ~xx150 n                 | n=16  | 75 20 20 21 25 20 20 21          | OK0  | Power mode<br>(standby) = Eco.                                | F      |
|        |                                |                          |       | 7E 30 30 31 35 30 20 31<br>36 0D | OK1  | Power mode<br>(standby) =<br>Active                           | F      |
|        |                                |                          | n=17  | 7E 30 30 31 35 30 20 31          | OK0  | DHCP = Of   | F      |
|        |                                |                          |       | 37 0D                            | OK1  | DHCP = On   | F      |
|        |                                |                          | n=18  | 7E 30 30 31 35 30 20 31<br>38 0D | Oknnn (ex. OK48)                           | System (SoC)<br>temperature                                   | F      |
|        |                                |                          | n=19  | 7E 30 30 31 35 30 20 31<br>39 0D | Oknnn (ex. OK60Hz)                         | Source refresh<br>rate  | F      |
|        | Requlatory<br>Model name       | ~xx151 n n=3             |       | 7E 30 30 31 35 31 20<br>33 0d    | Oknnn (ex. SLUGRK)                         | Regulator model<br>name<br>(will provide<br>when kick off)    | F      |
|        | Standby Mode                   |                          |       |                                  | INFO0                                      |   |        |
| System | Warming up                     |                          |       |                                  | INFO1                                      |   |        |
| Auto   | Cooling down                   |                          |       |                                  | INFO2                                      |   |        |
| send   | Over<br>temperature            |                          |       |                                  | INF07                                      |   |        |
|        | OSD lock                       | ~xx229 n                 | n=1   | 7E 30 30 32 32 39 20             | OK0  | OSD lock = Off  | F      |
|        |                                | ~~~~~ II                 | 1     | 31 0D                            | OK1  | OSD lock = On   | F      |
|        | Serial Number                  | ~xx353 n                 | n = 1 | 7E 30 30 33 35 33 20<br>31 0D    | Okaaaaaaaaaa<br>aaaaaa                     | a = serial number<br>string                                   | F      |
| GET    |                                |                          |       |                                  | Ok1  | Green/Normal  | F      |
|        | System<br>Temperature<br>Level | ~XX155 n n= <sup>-</sup> |       | 7E 30 30 31 35 35 20<br>31 0D    | Ok2<br>Ok3                                 | Orange/Notice<br>Red/Warning.<br>About to trigger<br>shutdown | F      |

#### Note: (\*1)

| Power           | Running Time        |   |   | Input | Firmware Version |                  |            |   | Display Mode |   |   |              |             |           |
|-----------------|---------------------|---|---|-------|------------------|------------------|------------|---|--------------|---|---|--------------|-------------|-----------|
| а               | b                   | b | b | b     | b                | с                | С          | d | d            | d | d |              | е           | е         |
| • a=0 Power Off | Usage hours = nnnnn |   |   | nnn   | • cc=07 HDMI1    |                  | #          | # | #            | # | • | ee=01 P      | resentation |           |
| • a=1 Power On  |                     |   |   |       |                  | • cc=08 F        |            |   |              |   | • | ee=02 Bright |             |           |
|                 |                     |   |   |       |                  | • cc=14 F        | HDMI3      |   |              |   |   | •            | ee=05 U     | lser      |
|                 |                     |   |   |       |                  | • cc=18 A        | Android    |   |              |   |   | •            | ee=21 H     | DR        |
|                 |                     |   |   |       |                  | cc=19 Slot in PC |            |   |              |   |   | •            | ee=03 C     | inema     |
|                 |                     |   |   |       |                  | • cc=21 L        | JSB Type C |   |              |   |   | •            | ee=10 D     | ICOM SIM. |

### **LED Indicator**

| Power LED Color & Behavior       | Status        |
|----------------------------------|---------------|
| Solid Red                        | Standby mode  |
| Solid Blue                       | Power on      |
| Flash Red then Blue continuously | Backlight off |

## **Port Information**

| Category                         | Function                                      | Protocol | Port     | Direction         | Description   |
|----------------------------------|---|----------|----------|-------------------|---|
|                                  | QR code scan & Go<br>function (https)         | TCP      | 443      | Inbound, Outbound |   |
|                                  | Samba (SMB/CIFS)                              | TCP      | 445      | Inbound, Outbound |   |
| FP                               | Media Player (https)                          | TCP      | 80       | Inbound, Outbound |   |
|                                  | Browser (http/https)                          | TCP      | no limit | osBookmarkModels  |   |
|                                  | WPS (http/https)                              | TCP      | 80/443   | Outbound          |   |
|                                  | Live Record<br>(rtmp/rtmps)                   | TCP      | no limit | Outbound          |   |
| Essential /                      | Api request/<br>response (http)               | TCP      | 80       | Inbound, Outbound | CB (embed browser),<br>FOTA, FM (could drive),<br>CB (google classroom),<br>App store |
| CB / FM /<br>App store /<br>Joan | Api request/<br>response (https)              | TCP      | 443      | Inbound, Outbound | CB (embed browser),<br>FOTA, FM (could drive),<br>CB (google classroom),<br>App store |
|                                  | webserver                                     | TCP      | 8080     | Inbound, Outbound | FM file (uploaded)  |
| Essential                        | Optoma Framework                              | TCP      | 7070     | Inbound, Outbound |   |
| Essential                        | Account Manager                               | TCP      | 9090     | Inbound, Outbound |   |
|                                  | OMSL (telnet)                                 | TCP      | 23       | Inbound           |   |
| OMSC /<br>OMSL                   | OMS Local<br>Advanced<br>Command<br>(JSONRPC) | TCP      | 1688     | Inbound           |   |

| Category         | Function  | Protocol | Port                  | Direction         | Description |
|------------------|---|----------|-----------------------|-------------------|-------------|
| OMSC /<br>OMSL   | Azure DPS/IoTHub  | TCP      | 5671                  | Outbound          |             |
|                  | OMS Cloud API<br>(https)                                | TCP      | 443                   | Outbound          |             |
| Creative<br>Cast | Web Server -<br>Chrome Browser<br>Sender (HTTP)         | TCP      | 80                    | Inbound, Outbound |             |
|                  | Web Server -<br>Chrome Browser<br>Sender (HTTPS)        | TCP      | 443                   | Inbound, Outbound |             |
|                  | WCP Control Plane                                       | TCP      | 3140                  | Inbound, Outbound |             |
|                  | WCP Data Plane  | UDP      | 0 ~ 65535<br>(random) | Inbound, Outbound |             |
|                  | mDNS/Airplay -<br>Device Discovery                      | UDP      | 5353                  | Inbound, Outbound |             |
|                  | Remote View - Real<br>Time Streaming<br>Protocol (RTSP) | TCP      | 4240                  | Outbound          |             |
|                  | Video Streaming<br>(HTTP)                               | TCP      | 6120                  | Inbound           |             |
|                  | Airplay - Audio/<br>Video                               | TCP      | 7100                  | Inbound           |             |
|                  | Chromecast<br>- Command<br>Operation                    | TCP      | 8008                  | Inbound, Outbound |             |
|                  | Chromecast -<br>Communication                           | TCP      | 8009                  | Inbound, Outbound |             |
|                  | Chromecast -<br>Service Discovery<br>(SSDP)             | UDP      | 1900                  | Inbound, Outbound |             |
|                  | Chromecast -<br>Audio/Video                             | UDP      | 33112/38072<br>/50757 | Inbound           |             |

## Troubleshooting

If you experience a problem with your device, please refer to the following information. If a problem persists, please contact your local reseller or service center.

#### ?

#### No picture or sound.

- Make sure all signal and power connections are properly connected.
- Make sure the correct input mode is selected. Refer to the "Shortcut Menu" section.
- Make sure the panel is not turned off.
- Turn off the mute function.
- Make sure the volume is not set to the minimum level.
- The panel automatically shuts down.
  - Check whether there is a sudden power outage.
  - Make sure the power cord is not disconnected.
- The signal is out of range
  - The signal may be incompatible. Refer to the "Supported Timing List" section.

#### If the remote control does not work

- Check that the operating angle of the remote control is pointed within ±30° to the IR receiver on the panel.
- Make sure there are no obstructions between the remote control and the panel. The distance between the remote control and the IR sensor window should not be longer than 8 meters.
- Make sure batteries are inserted correctly and replace the batteries if they are depleted. Refer to the "Installing/Replacing the Remote Control Batteries" section.

## Maintenance

Proper routine maintenance can help with early fault detection and keep the panel looking like new.

**IMPORTANT!** Before cleaning and performing any maintenance task, make sure to unplug the power cord from the power outlet to prevent electric shock.

### **Cleaning the Screen**

- When the screen requires cleaning, please unplug the power cord first.
- Please use a soft, dust-free, dry cloth to wipe the screen.
- Do not use water or a spray cleaner to clean the panel.
- Please contact the service center for internal cleaning of the panel.

### **Clean the Front Frame**

Use a dry, soft, lint-free cloth to wipe the front frame.

\$88-289-6786

10-897-8601

\$888-289-6786

\$888-289-6786

File 510-897-8601

510-897-8601

services@optoma.com

services@optoma.com

services@optoma.com

## **Optoma Global Offices**

For service or support, please contact your local office.

USA

47697 Westinghouse Drive, Fremont, CA 94539, USA www.optomausa.com

#### Canada

47697 Westinghouse Drive, Fremont, CA 94539, USA www.optomausa.com

### Latin America

47697 Westinghouse Drive. Fremont, CA 94539, USA www.optomausa.com

#### Europe

Unit 1, Network 41, Bourne End Mills, Hemel Hempstead, Herts, HP1 2UJ, United Kingdom www.optoma.eu Service Tel : +44 (0)1923 691865

### Benelux BV

Randstad 22-123 1316 BW Almere The Netherlands www.optoma.nl

### France

Bâtiment F 81-83 avenue Edouard Vaillant 92100 Boulogne Billancourt, France

#### Spain

C/José Hierro, 36 Of. 1C 28522 Rivas VaciaMadrid, Spain

### Deutschland

Wiesenstrasse 21 W D40549 Düsseldorf, Germany

### **Scandinavia**

Lerpeveien 25 3040 Drammen Norway

PO.BOX 9515 3038 Drammen Norway

#### Korea

WOOMI TECH.CO.,LTD. 4F, Minu Bldg.33-14, Kangnam-Ku, Seoul, 135-815, KOREA korea.optoma.com



Japan

東京都足立区綾瀬3-25-18 株式会社オーエス コンタクトセンター:0120-380-495

### Taiwan

12F., No.213, Sec. 3, Beixin Rd., Xindian Dist., New Taipei City 231, Taiwan, R.O.C. www.optoma.com.tw

#### Hong Kong

Unit A, 27/F Dragon Centre, 79 Wing Hong Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

#### China

Room 2001, 20F, Building 4, No. 1398 Kaixuan Road, **Changning District** Shanghai, 200052, China

info@os-worldwide.com www.os-worldwide.com

- +886-2-8911-8600 1 +886-2-8911-6550 services@optoma.com.tw asia.optoma.com
- +852-2396-8968 +852-2370-1222 www.optoma.com.hk
- +86-21-62947376 File +86-21-62947375 servicecn@optoma.com.cn www.optoma.com.cn



+31 (0) 36 548 9052

+31 (0) 36 820 0252

【 +33 1 41 46 12 20 +33 1 41 46 94 35 savoptoma@optoma.fr

+34 91 499 06 06 🔚 +34 91 670 08 32

**(** +49 (0) 211 506 6670 Fig +49 (0) 211 506 66799 info@optoma.de

| ς. | +47 32 98 89 90 |  |  |
|----|-----------------|--|--|
| 19 | +47 32 98 89 99 |  |  |
| 13 | info@optoma.no  |  |  |

### www.optoma.com